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Financial and Operational Highlights Bfi§EBE ¥ EiFE

(Amounts expressed in HK$ million, 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

unless specified) Notes
(UABEEETAEN  RISBIZEAMN) k=4
Turnover =E 3 9,669 8,299 7,749 7,303 6,216
Profit for the year PNNEETR

attributable to equity B & L

holders of the Company N A 926 625 480 462 422
Total equity s 3,916 3,315 2,930 2,731 2,529
Total assets BMEE 6,890 5,842 5,266 4,822 4,391
Total liabilities to HmeFe

equity ratio R E 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7
Total interest-bearing WM B E R e

debts to total equity ratio MR = 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.1
Current ratio TENEE =R 1.9 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.8
Trade and bills receivables EWERERREREZE

to turnover (days) Lb&EZH(H) 39 48 41 21 31
Inventory to turnover (days) TFELEEEE(H) 60 57 61 53 61
Net assets per share BREEFE

(HK cents) (GEBA) 295 250 221 206 191
Return on total assets (%) 8 E R RE(%) 13.4 10.7 9.1 9.6 9.6
Return on turnover (%) B XL IRE(%) 9.6 7.5 6.2 6.3 6.8
Interest cover (times) FEREL = (Z8) 1 29 16 14 54 130
EBITDA BB -ER

1 8 A 7 2 1,578 1,076 826 792 709
EBITDA to turnover (%) BB imEREH
BRI EL & 358 (%) 16.3 13.0 10.7 10.8 11.4
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Financial and Operational Highlights Bf 5B 2 KB E

(Amounts expressed in HK$ million, 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
unless specified) Notes
(UABEEEBTAEN  RISBIZEAMN) k=4
Basic earnings per share EXSRER
(HK cents) (Bl ) 3 69.8 47.1 36.2 34.8 31.9
Dividends per share (HK cents) SRR S (GE#1) 43 27 22 21 20
Dividend yield (%) B B 53R = (%) 4 7.7 5.1 3.7 3.2 3.3
Number of issued shares ERITROHE
(million) (&) 1,327 1,326 1,326 1,326 1,325
Number of employees EEB A"
Hong Kong & Macau EBREM 716 682 1,007 881 759
Taiwan =0 587 640 737 851 717
Mainland China ] K fE 23,372 21,300 20,249 19,691 16,376
Singapore S b0 3 369 522 464 333 248
Malaysia BRAER 185 256 343 61 —
Total 48 2 25,229 23,400 22,800 21,817 18,100
Notes: Hfat -
1. Interest cover was calculated by dividing the profit before interest 1. FIEARBE L F 2 5t B 23 B 18 R F B 5l 2 )% I 82 7
and tax by the interest expenses. EEBHZEE-
2. EBITDA is the earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and 2. EBITDAZ KT IS ~ B1E - TER#HEEH I F
amortisation expenses. e
3. Number of shares was on weighted average basis. 3 RO E RN FIGEENE o

4. Dividend yield was calculated by dividing the dividends per share by 4.

the closing market price per share as at the respective balance sheet

dates.

5. The financial results of the above refer to the results of the Group for 5.

each financial year. And, the other figures used were the position of

the Group as at the respective balance sheet dates.

REEHEZAERERREER R ARG

FAGRKTEZLEE -

U ERBEDIEREBRGEASRFELHFEE M
Htt Y FRIIEXAEBRBEBAFEZEAZER
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Chairman’s Statement X EREE

The Group achieved strong results again in this fiscal year.
Consolidated revenue and profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company both yielded new high to HK$9,669 million
and HK$926 million, respectively. All textile, garment and retail
business sectors produced progressive performance. More detailed
information regarding the Group’s operating results and financial
position can be found in the Management’s Discussion and

Analysis section in this annual report.

The fabric division experienced a stable operating environment in
the period. Industry consolidation continued in faster manner and
the Group further grew its production capacity to extend market
share. Order volume was strong even under a slower US economy.
The Group was also able to increase selling prices to counter the

escalating costs.

The retail business gained significant improved results. Store
expansion was slowed down with only 41 new outlets added in
the year. Strong business growth was mainly driven by the mature
performance of many young stores opened in the past few years.
Mainland China operation was still the best performer and will

continue be the focus market.

The Group is in healthy financial position. It is the Group’s
policy to return surplus cash to the shareholders. The Board
has recommended a final dividend of HK 25.0 cents per share.
Together with the interim dividend of HK 18.0 cents per share, the
dividend payout ratio will be 62% for the year.

Looking forward, with the increasingly cloudy global economic
outlook, the operating environment will be more uncertain.
The Group will continue its scale expansion to pursue operating
efficiency. With solid business foundation and sound financial
position, the Management maintains an optimistic view on the

Group's prospect for the coming year.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my gratitude
towards the shareholders and business partners for their ongoing
support. | would also like to offer special thanks to our colleagues

for their excellent contribution to the Group.

Poon Bun Chak

Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 July 2008
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ZEXB2EXERARARZ - FAZEHERK
BoEEMTABHE EBERBYETEZMHB
AHFERRZHFSHERRRANTEH - PEK
BEEBDMERERR  BNERERSERDS -

TEBGBERRERE BRHBBESRERRAE
EECHX EBEERREAARESRBYE
2501l - EEFEREGRBE 1801 0 KERE
TREEH62% ©
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TREE AEEGEEER B REENS
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FABRRESESHRIAREBEBHZIRAX
o RATRINZHEZMUAEEER 2ER -
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis B8 2R R 04T

BUSINESS REVIEW

For this fiscal year ended 31 March 2008, the Group’'s total
turnover increased by 17%, to HK$9,669 million (2007: HK$8,299
million). Profit for the year attributable to the equity holders
of the Company amounted to HK$926 million (2007: HK$625
million), an increase of 48% over last year. The Group’s gross
profit margin increased by 1.7% to 33.5% (2007: 31.8%). The
Board has recommended a final dividend of HK 25.0 cents (2007:
HK 15.0 cents) per ordinary share. Including interim dividend, total
dividend per ordinary share amounts to HK 43.0 cents, an increase

of 59% over last year's HK 27.0 cents.

Textile business

Turnover of the fabric business grew by 16% to HK$5,386 million
(2007: HK$4,627 million). The sum represented 56% of the Group’s
total turnover. In the period, industry consolidation was going
on which provided a more favourable business environment for
the Group. Raw material prices were stable, but other production
costs increased due to upsurge of fuel prices, wage inflation, the
reduction in VAT export refund and the appreciation of Renminbi.
The Group was able to raise the average selling price to protect
the profit margin. Gross profit margin for this year increased by
2.2% to 21.3% (2007: 19.1%). Production capacity increased by
about 15% in the period to capture greater market share and
maximize operating efficiency. The business performance and the

key financial ratios were as below:

EH O
BE-ZZ\F=A=+-ALZAMBFE "

REECBEEBER EF17%  EB6698 8
T(ZEZLF: BYS2FET) - AN AR
EMEEREEAFERANABE2EET(=F
TLF BB EHER) BEFERB% o K&
EEZENREAITI%EBS%(ZEZTLF .
31.8%) EEEBER MU ABREGLBERABY
2501l (ZZFLF @ B1501ML) - ER P HER
B BEBRREALEABEBML  BEF2
B #527.01L38 R 59% °

MK
S EREEEIEMI6%E BHS386EHE T
(ZBE2LF  B¥I4/HET) - KBBEBARE
B4 & 38 256% ° TEREER 2FX&
EEREZKERE - RAERKTRE  BHEME
ERALATESHRBERLE TE LK H
BHARARBHEBEEZE - AETEMEH
P ERERUREZEFIE - ERNELFH22%
ZAN3%(=ZFZLF  191%) c EEIRBR
BMH%ABEBRATSEEERRAZELEN
o EBRARTEVBLERIINT !

(in HK$'million) (¥ B E 1) 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Net sales FHE 5.386 4,627 4,258 4,109 3,627
Gross profit margin (%) EFE (%) 21.3 19.1 18.0 16.8 16.9
Operating profit (note) SEFE (ME) 910 664 503 426 374
EBITDA (note) E BB 1,108 837 665 571 489
R 84 A1 R
(Miat)
Return on total assets (%) (note) BEEWHEE (%) (F&F) 14.8 13.7 11.0 10.7 10.0
Return on sales (%) (note) HEWSEE (%) (M) 15.4 14.5 12.2 10.5 10.7
Return on equity (%) (note) ERWER (%) (fF) 22.5 20.5 18.1 16.8 16.0
Capital expenditure BEARMLH 216 468 148 392 469

Note: Exclude interest income and rental income

Kzt : TEEFNBUAREZUA
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis EEE 2R MR DT

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Retail and distribution business

Sales of the business amounted to HK$4,239 million (2007:
HK$3,625 million), an increase of 17%, and represented 44% of
the Group’s total turnover. The operation continued to achieve
improved results. In the period, 130 new outlets were added in the
focus Mainland China market. Store expansion was slowed down
and greatest effort was placed to improve the store performance.

Average selling price was increased to widen the profit margin.

¥ e #E)
SERDHERK
WERHEEEABEL9FET (ZZEELF .

BHIEHEBL) ER17% > MEAEEEAE
A% c REBPEMSELS 2 EE - BN
FEAELNESMSIERIIEI30[ - EHER

BEMBOIETREAEHZERB ERTEHE
BEEMAEEZERAE - EFELEHI13%E
291% (ZBEL5F | 47.8%) c RAFER :

Gross profit margin increased by 1.3% to 49.1% (2007: 47.8%). At

the year end:

(a)

the business performance and the key financial ratios were  (a)

as follows:

EBRARTEFBLLRBIIMT ¢

(in HK$'million) (GE# B B 7T ) 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Net sales FHE 4,239 3,625 3,444 3,146 2,548
Gross profit margin (%) EFIZE (%) 49.1 47.8 46.5 46.8 46.7
Sales growh of AL EHEE 214 2.9 (7.0) 0.1 1.9
comparable shops (%) BRIEE (%)
(note 1) (HtaE1)
Operating profit (note 2) EEFE(ME2) 242 21 (55) 65 126
EBITDA (note 2) BB FER 364 147 62 151 186
B A A
(Mz2)
Return on total assets (%) (note 2) BEEWZRE (%)(H:t2) 2.1 (0.4) (3.6) 1.9 5.5
Return on sales (%) (note 2) HEWEE (%) (ME2) 0.8 (0.4) (2.8) 1.5 4.1
Return on equity (%) (note 2) EREWRRE (%) (HE2) 26.2 9.1 (77.5) 21.8 59.8
Capital expenditure BEAMZH 76 141 203 233 150

Notes: (1) Comparable shops of a year include shops with full year

operation during the year and the preceding year.

(2) Exclude interest income and rental income.

Bt : (1) AHEHERZFERA—F9F
PFEEBHIER
Q@ TEEHNERARBEZRA -



BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Retail and distribution business (continued)

(b)

(9]

the analysis of turnover by major brand was as follows:

KGO EEE)
BERDHES (&)

Management'’s Discussion and Analysis &I & 2 & ilt

(b) BRIEmMEEEINMOT :

(in HK$’million) GE¥ E E ) 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Baleno B % 1,589 1,584 1,596 1,497 1,285
S&K S&K 826 601 563 586 464
I.P. Zone I.P. Zone 528 441 361 302 196
ebase ebase 462 398 399 337 203
Others Hith 834 601 525 424 400
Total ait 4,239 3,625 3,444 3,146 2,548
the development in different markets was as follows: (0 HBWWEBBREBERAOT !
Mainland China B K pE
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Net sales HEFHE

(HK$ million) (BEET) 3,124 2,431 2,219 1,963 1,598
Increase in net sales (%) HEBHE2EMN(%) 29 10 13 23 12
Retail floor area TEEEER

(sq.ft.)** (FTR)** 1,692,967 1,672,807 1,601,473 1,322,547 621,294
Number of sales associates** EEEHE* 10,442 11,089 10,119 10,534 6,395
Number of outlets*® M8 *2 3,477 3,347 3,143 2,837 1,750
Hong Kong and Macau BEREM

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Net sales HEFHE

(HK$ million) (BE¥EET) 404 476 496 463 393
Increase/(decrease) HEFHE LM

in net sales (%) OR 2 ) (%) (15) (4) 7 18 19
Retail floor area TEEAER

(sq.ft.)** (FFHR)* 63,957 74,907 78,285 81,442 64,930
Number of sales associates** EEBgA 396 447 624 536 382
Number of outlets** MM R ** 70 87 94 85 62

09



Management’s Discussion and Analysis B8~

(9]

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) KO #)
Retail and distribution business (continued) ZERDHEEK ()
the development in different markets was as follows: (o) LWHIBEEBIWOT © (&)
(continued)
Taiwan &
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Net sales HEFE
(HK$ million) (B EET) 397 427 513 557 440
Increase/(decrease) HEFE2EM
in net sales (%) OB 2) (%) (7 (17) (8) 27 38
Retail floor area TERHERE
(sq.ft.)** (FFIR)** 199,443 202,080 208,925 219,625 150,965
Number of sales associates** EEEHA 474 528 603 706 614
Number of outlets*? P & *2 217 259 266 270 196
Singapore 7 hn 3%
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Net sales HEFE
(HK$ million) (B EET) 233 221 175 154 117
Increase in net sales (%) HEFHE2EMN(%) 5 26 14 32 83
Retail floor area TEEEER
(sq.ft.)** (FFR)** 43,149 61,601 55,781 32,548 31,289
Number of sales associates** EEEHA 318 456 408 289 234
Number of outlets** Fh&E A ** 44 64 56 43 32
Malaysia BRAR
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Net sales HEFE
(HK$ million) (B¥EET) 81 70 M 9  NATER
Increase in net sales (%) HEBE2EMN(%) 16 71 356 N/ATEH N/ATE R
Retail floor area ZEEEEE
(sq.ft.)** (SFF R ) *+ 44,630 59,170 36,681 17,200 N/ATE A
Number of sales associates** EEEHA 149 243 155 66 N/ATEHM
Number of outlets* PITh 8 ** 20 30 20 31 NATEMA
* As at 31 March R=A=+—H
# For self-managed stores HE &

A Include self-managed and franchise stores



Management’s Discussion and Analysis B8 2R R 04T

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Garment manufacturing business

Turnover of this associate grew 18% to HK$1,221 million (2007:
HK$1,036 million). Net profit contribution to the Group amounted
to HK$62 million (2007: HK$48 million), an increase of 29%. In
the period, about 73% (2007: 63%) of the fabric purchased was
supplied by our fabric division and sales to our retail division

accounted for about 20% (2007: 17%) of its revenue.

FINANCIAL CONDITION

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group continued to maintain a strong financial position.
The current ratio, the total bank debts and the gearing ratio as
at the year end were 1.9, HK$1,248 million and 0.1 (2007: 1.6,
HK$1,105 million and 0.3), respectively. The gearing ratio refers
to the ratio of the total interest-bearing debts, net of cash and
cash equivalents, to total shareholders’ equity. The net cash inflow
from operating activities for the year was HK$1,131 million (2007:
HK$598 million). The surge in the net cash inflow was mainly due
to the drastic growth in the sales and gross profit of the textile
business and the retail and distribution business and the reduction
of the trade and bills receivables to turnover (days) by 9 days to 39

days (2007: 48 days) compared with last year.

The interest cover and the inventory to turnover for the year
under review were 29 times and 60 days (2007: 16 times and 57
days), respectively. The Group mainly financed its operation by
cash inflow from its operating activities and bank borrowings. At
the balance sheet date, the cash and cash equivalents, the equity
attributable to equity holders of the Company and the unutilized
banking facilities were HK$818 million, HK$3,819 million and
HK$3,347 million (2007: HK$245 million, HK$3,248 million and

HK$2,820 million), respectively.

E 3 3C1)-4E )

CEE S
HHEEBEEERRIBUEBBI2IEER
(Z2ZLF: B¥10368E8) HEAE@F
BANERABERABL(ZTZELF B4
BET)  18M29% - HAN73%(ZFZLF
63%) BAZHBRAEBHBEBHEE M
EFAEEZEXBAMEHEERN20% (==
BLHF 1 17%)

B 7 AR R

REBEERUBER
AEEEBESRYNFTHEMRR - REAFER R
BhR -RTEFRBLERELFAEGLEERIFA
19 BHI248HETIROI(ZFEZTLE 16
BE1L105BBTR03) c EAEBHEDENR
ReRASEEYNENEETRARRERZ
bR REKEMBHRENAFEERBE,131
BER(ZZZLF ! BYSBAET) RER
AFHESATEHRGBAEBNZTERDHER
MEENEFNAEBELHA  REKEIREREE
HEXHAEAL EFHPIRENR(ZEEL
F . 48K) o

RAF  FIERELERFEEESERLESH
RBBERE0OKR (ZEZLF | 16/5R57K) - AF
EFrZUKEMEBRSRARRITERRZHE
BEESWNER -RELEBR ReRkBLZEY -
AAEERRBEERLEER A ARITEER
DRRBESIBSEE T BH3IBIOEETREY
3M7TEERN(ZEZLEF | B2 E T - B
3248 HE T RIBUE2820HETT) ©



Management’s Discussion and Analysis EEE 2R MR DT

FINANCIAL CONDITION (continued)

Capital expenditure

Total capital expenditure of the Group for the year amounted
to HK$292 million (2007: HK$609 million), of which HK$216
million (2007: HK$468 million) was incurred by the textile
business for the expansion of its production capacity to meet the
continuous increase in customer demand. The decrease in the
capital expenditure during the year was due to the completion
of construction and addition of machinery for the second phase
of the spinning factory in last year. For the retail and distribution
business, the management has been focusing more on the
development of the existing retail network to improve the same-
store growth, thus the capital expenditure incurred by this
business decreased by HK$65 million to HK$76 million (2007:

HK$141 million) compared with last year.

Pledge of assets
No significant assets were pledged as at 31 March 2007 and 31
March 2008.

Foreign exchange and interest rate risks

The Group continued to adopt a strict and prudent policy in
managing its interest rate and currency exchange risks. The major
interest bearing bank borrowings of the Group were HIBOR based
Hong Kong dollar borrowings with maturity due within five years.
The Group will continue to monitor the changes in the interest
rate and arrange appropriate financial instruments to hedge its

interest rate risks whenever needed.

During the year, the major revenues, expenses and procurements
of the Group were denominated in HKD, USD, Renminbi, Yen,
and NTD. The Group had arranged forward exchange contracts to

reduce its currency exchange risk.

Human Resources

As at 31 March 2008, the Group had about 25,200 (2007: 23,400)
employees in the Greater China, Singapore and Malaysia. The
remuneration of the employees was largely based on industry

practice and the performance of individual employee

B AR R ()
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RAFE REEERAEX HABB2NTE T (=
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EHRE BTN EERRERBEENREE
TR TERSHEKRIE  BEEEBREMER
RERSTEAEUEMEEHE RELELE
AMETHBREFRLOBRGCEELZBHTCEE
T(ZZZLF BB IMEER) -

TLF=ZA=T-HR=
tT—HB UBEREECHEER -

ENF=ZRA=

BE 5 & I R b
FAEEESBEREBFERREEMN REERRE
o AEBIEMBRTERBEL  AXRUF
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FEBRBEETTIZRNREE  INFERZ
HEESRT AU NERRER -
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis B8 2R R 04T

OUTLOOK

In the coming year, the Group will continue a moderate
expansion in all textile, garment and retail sections to extend
market share and to pursue optimum operating efficiency. Total
capital expenditure will be about HK$300 million. Cash inflow is
anticipated to be strong, thus dividend payout ratio will still be at

a high level.

The Group is at a good bargaining position in pricing to protect its
profit growth. It will also maintain solid cost control to enhance
profit return. In the coming year, the Group will face more
challenges caused by the global inflation. However, the Group
maintains an extremely optimistic view on its business performance

for the next financial year.

RE
REBRFBEFECTHSE HRRZEEEEEF
HAEZBERUAEBNMTSEEEREREEZE
ERm o BEAMIHNABHEI0EET
AEEERNARY  AMKRLRDEERS
KFE o
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Report of the Directors EE =%

The board of directors (the “Board”) have pleasure in presenting
their report and the audited financial statements of Texwinca
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively

referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group’'s principal activities during the year consisted of
the production, dyeing and sale of knitted fabric and yarn, the
retailing and distribution of casual apparel and accessory, the
provision of franchise services, and the provision of repair and
maintenance services for motors and generators. There were no
significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities

during the year.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The Group's profit for the year ended 31 March 2008 and the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out

in the financial statements on pages 50 to 164.

An interim dividend of HK 18.0 cents per ordinary share was paid
on 6 February 2008. The Board recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK 25.0 cents per ordinary share in respect of the
year, to shareholders on the register of members on 28 August
2008. This recommendation has been incorporated in the financial
statements as an allocation of retained profits within the equity

section of the balance sheet.

ETEXRK
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Report o

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and minority
interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted
from the published audited financial statements and restated/

reclassified as appropriate, is set out below.

This summary does not form part of the audited financial

f the Directors EE &R &%

MBEREE
THRAFPEERBATANBEEZEERE
B AERLERFERECHE DHAEAH
CEBUHMBRRRETEENET R -

HHEY FEREELHBHRRZ2BD

statements.
RESULTS ES
Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—HLEE
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT BT T BT T BT T
REVENUE A 9,669,206 8,298,552 7,749,112 7,302,697 6,216,465
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B B A% R 1,213,975 732,868 505,690 544,798 525,097
Tax 18 (254,843) (107,047) (70,473) (61,113) (55,554)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 7 5 A 959,132 625,821 435,217 483,685 469,543
Attributable to: BB
Equity holders PNYNETR
of the Company EE 926,351 625,148 480,253 461,799 421,877
Minority interests LHRRER 32,781 673 (45,036) 21,886 47,666
959,132 625,821 435,217 483,685 469,543
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ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND MINORITY INTERESTS

EE - AERLBRRES

As at 31 March

R=ZA=+-—8H
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETFT BETFT BETT BETFTT BETT
TOTAL ASSETS EERE 6,890,097 5,842,399 5,265,840 4,822,286 4,390,685
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEHEE (2,973,812) (2,527,376) (2,335,891) (2,090,945) (1,861,347)
MINORITY INTERESTS LPEBRRER (96,933) (66,943) (58,148) (103,498) (82,766)
3,819,352 3,248,080 2,871,801 2,627,843 2,446,572

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and

investment properties of the Group during the year are set out in

notes 13 and 14 to the financial statements, respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS
Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share
options during the year, together with the reasons therefor, are set

out in notes 28 and 29 to the financial statements, respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing

shareholders.

ME - BERKRERREWE

FEERAFEEZNE BERRBEREYE
ZE2BHFED I HR M B RERMT13R 14

A I BB R R
ARARFRARARBRESZDZHBEREHR
HE 5 Bl P8R B 5 MR M 28R 29 -

BARBE
AARZAMMBEREFEZEOMEE RS
RGEXBERADDARLHIERERRBTHR -
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Since the grant of the share repurchase mandate in the last annual

general meeting on 24 August 2007, the Company has made

the following share repurchases of its own shares on The Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”):

BERZZZ2LFNAZTHARREFAER
HEBROKRE AQACREBHEXS
RAE ([P EBUTARTRED

BA BEERHERDT LHES

]

Price per share

Number of BRERK Aggregate
Date shares repurchased Highest Lowest consideration
HH# =R #E RS RIE REHLE
HK$ HK$ HK$
B % B B
25 March 2008 402,000 5.65 5.53 2,259,000
—EZENF=ZHAB=+HH
26 March 2008 82,000 5.65 5.65 465,000
—E2NE=A=15H
27 March 2008 150,000 5.65 5.55 845,000
—2ET\F=A=+tH
28 March 2008 76,000 5.59 5.52 425,000
—EENF=A=+TN\H
1 April 2008 166,000 5.49 5.43 908,000
—EENFWMA—H
9 April 2008 288,000 5.48 5.42 1,572,000
—EZNFHWARA
10 April 2008 250,000 5.38 5.32 1,338,000
—EENFWMATH
1,414,000 7,812,000

The repurchased shares were subsequently cancelled and the
issued share capital of the Company was reduced by the par value
thereof. The premium paid on the purchase of the shares of
HK$7,741,000 has been debited to the share premium account of
the Company. An amount equivalent to the par value of the shares
cancelled has been transferred from the retained profits of the

Company to the capital redemption reserve.

EEsROEONRICEREBEEZARAR
BORATEHNE ENZEBROEEBY
7,741,0007T - ERA DA RAEERANE - 18
ZREERNEE2ERE  EHAXRLTANRER
FEBRERNERRHE -
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

The repurchases were effected by the directors pursuant to the

general mandate granted with a view to benefit the shareholders

as a whole by enhancing the net assets, and/or earnings per

share of the Company. All shares repurchased were subsequently

cancelled.

Save as disclosed herein, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed

securities of the Company.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 30(b) to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,

respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2008, the Company’s reserves available for
cash distribution and/or distribution in specie amounted to
HK$1,173,346,000, of which HK$331,750,000 has been proposed
as a final dividend for the year. In addition, the Company’s share
premium account, in the amount of HK$350,598,000, may be

distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

BA BEIHEAXAQIT LTRSS HE)

ESTRRCERN-RIEETEE  BNE
DRAADNDNEERH RABREN  £F
BRREDR - TARDBENROBEEESWEVE -

Br LM PR RSN 0 AR B REAEMKE QB AL E
BA > HESBELARXAEMLEHRES -

f#

BRUBRMI0ORESEREH R

A 5K 7%

REZZFZENEF=ZA=+—0 A2AAHERE
R/ SHREY DK 2B 5B %51,173,346,000 7T
H o8 45 K 3% S 5 R B AR B 4% 08 5 331,750,000
T e Bb AN - A A B IR AN 3 18 BR 7B 1 350,598,000 T
TRAI AR AR X F UDIK ©
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for less than 30.0% of the total sales for the
year. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted
for 37.0% of the total purchases for the year and purchases from

the largest supplier included therein amounted to 18.4%.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or
any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any beneficial interest in the Group's five largest customers and

suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive directors:

Poon Bun Chak (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Poon Kai Chak

Poon Kei Chak

Poon Kwan Chak

Ting Kit Chung

Independent non-executive directors (“INED"):
Au Son Yiu
Cheng Shu Wing

Wong Tze Kin, David

FTEEFRMHERD

RAFE  EFAKBEERAEATF2E&EER
FRIEEDN300% AEBRBEAEEAHERS
ZEBLEEFZHEREN0%  HfhmsgRHEE
AHRBAMG 2 FEERE184% -

VEMEMADDESREBBAAREMRER (&
EENBGARACTHITRASRU L) BHAEH
BERABEEFRUEBEEMERRE -

S
AERAARESMT :

HITES:
BWR(TEREBHLE)
BEEE

EHE

EEYE

T

BIFHITES:
ERR
L RS
EBE



20

Report of the Directors EE =%

DIRECTORS (continued)
In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws, all the existing
directors will retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for

re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from Messrs. Au Son Yiu, Cheng Shu Wing and Wong Tze Kin,
David, and as at the date of this report still considers them to be

independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The service contracts entered into between the Company and each
of the executive directors as listed above may be terminated by
either party by giving not less than three months’ written notice or

compensation in lieu.

Save as disclosed above, no director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at
general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Company’s board of directors with reference to directors’ duties,

responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 35 to the financial statements, no director
had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract
of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company,
its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries was a party during

the year.

- =-9¢ )
READTDESAR  HERTESEREDGE
TZRRBERELRE HEREFESERLE
BT -

AABEEEBELRERAL  BHRKELEREAR
EECBFFHZBIRAS  BERRARS
ZEH DARZEBLFYTEZEBY -

EERBEN
FAAARLFISHPTESHTZRBEENER
EHERALBHENE P —FART TR
CEAZEERARRBAREY -

BREXPRiREE S ANQE W MR R AN AG R
TZRERBEFAELERBEFCESEITALQH
R—FERTEHE ZEBERD BIFTLL
ZRBEH -

ExMe
EERLARRIRARRAG LEBS - HftrB &
BIMARCEEERBEBCBY  EARER
BEE AT -

EEAER

MR B REMESMEN SEERFEARE
EADE - HERAFALHEE M E A T AT
ZHEAEAENPEERBREEEAER -
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Executive directors

Mr. Poon Bun Chak, aged 60, is the chairman and chief executive

officer overseeing the planning and development of the Group. He

founded the Group in 1975 and has more than 33 years’ experience

in the textile field.

Mr. Poon Kai Chak, aged 58, is a younger brother of Mr. Poon Bun
Chak. He joined the Group in 1980 and has more than 28 years’
experience in the Industry. He is responsible for the management

of the manufacturing operations of the Group.

Mr. Poon Kei Chak, aged 56, is a younger brother of Mr. Poon Bun
Chak. He joined the Group on its establishment in 1975 and has
more than 33 years’ experience in the field. He is responsible for

the purchases, sales and the overall management of the Group.

Mr. Poon Kwan Chak, aged 62, is the elder brother of Mr. Poon
Bun Chak. He joined the Group in 1976 and has more than
32 years’ related experience. He is responsible for the Group’s

merchandising and sales management.

Mr. Ting Kit Chung, aged 52, is responsible for the general
administration and financial management of the Group. He
joined the Group in 1991 and has more than 10 years’ banking
experience. He holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from The University

of Hong Kong.

EERGREEAREE

BITES

BWELEE ATm TEREFHKLE 88
EEAKEERERERE - BR-NACEFAIH
FEBUHEEB=T=ZFHAELH -

BEERE BT N\R BHEREZRS K
R-ANEEMARER  EHEB= T NFRIT
LR AEXEENEEEE -

BRELE Bt Am BWELEZRS - ®
R-NWtEAFAEBAYEBMALRER  EEE
SH=FH8XELR SERE HERBYE
BAEE-MREK -

BHERE SNTZHR - BHELREZRR K
R-NEAREMARER  BEA=1T-FFH
XN EEEEBEAKEERBERHEEXEY -

THEERE  At+=m BEXEETHRRYE
EE - WR—AN—FMALEER  BHEATF
RITHELR - HEEEBRBEXELEN -
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (continued)

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Au Son Yiu, aged 63, has extensive experience in the securities
industry. He is a director of The Association of Former Council
Members of the Stock Exchange and the Institute of Securities
Dealers Limited, a consultant to Dao Heng Securities Limited and
a member of the Election Committee for the financial services
subsector election for the 1998 Legislative Council. He is also an
independent non-executive director for several public companies
listed on the Stock Exchange. In addition, he is the ex-deputy
chairman of The Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited
(1992-1994) and ex-council member of the Stock Exchange
(1988-1994). He was appointed as an independent non-executive

director of the Company in July 1995.

Mr. Cheng Shu Wing, aged 58, is a director of Techluxe Investments
Limited. He holds a Bachelor of Business Administration degree
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong and has more than 30
years' experience in the banking and securities industries in Hong
Kong. He was appointed as an independent non-executive director

of the Company in July 1992.

Mr. Wong Tze Kin, David, aged 45, is a director of CFL Anchor
Limited. Mr. Wong holds a Bachelor of Science degree from
the University of California at Berkeley. He is a member of
the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He has over 20 years’' experience in accounting,
corporate finance, stockbroking and fund management. He
was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the

Company in March 2004.

EERGREBAREE @)

BIYFHITES

BRBEE ATZH REZRABREZL
B RABMXFTEREEHESERIARES
BAHEERARNES  BETRSERATMEMA
UR—AANFEL S EREZESTRRBRAR
B BREE - FAASHEEBIMLET 2
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NNEOE) REXAAEEEERE (- NANEF
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (continued)

Senior management

Mr. Chan Min, Samuel, aged 53, is a director of the Group’s retail
operations. He holds a Master’s degree in business administration
from the Northwestern University and The Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology. He is a member of the British Computer
Society. Prior to joining the Group in 1996, Mr. Chan had over 15

years' experience in retail operations and MIS management.

Mr. Chan Chi Hon, aged 46, joined the Group in 1997 and is the
Group’s financial controller and company secretary. Mr. Chan
holds a Master’s degree in commerce from The University of
New South Wales, Australia, and is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and is a certified
practising accountant of the CPA Australia. He has more than 21

years' experience in auditing and accounting.

Mr. Chau Kuen Kai, aged 50, is a factory manager of the knitting
operations of the Group. He joined the Group in 1979 and has
more than 28 years’' experience in the knitting industry.

Mr. Fung Wai Lun, Daniel, aged 51, is a director of the Group’s
retail operations. Before joining the Group in 1996, Mr. Fung had

more than 20 years' experience in the retailing industry.

Mr. Hon Siu Kit, aged 48, is a director of Nice Dyeing Factory
Limited, a subsidiary of the Group engaged in the sale of finished
knitted fabric. He joined the Group in 1993 and has more than 30

years' experience in the textile industry.

Mr. Ling Man, aged 55, is a factory manager in charge of the yarn
dyeing operations of the Group. He joined the Group in 1998 and
has more than 32 years’ experience in the dyeing and finishing

industry.

EERSREBEAEBE #)

BEREEAR
RBEE  B+=Zm AKET
BEEXEAALRBERBEBENRARZEENTE
EEBIEN -RARAERBEEE - N —N
AARFEMAREBA  RELERBEEX X
BREMABNZEEHEBTHF -

EXB2ES -

REELRE O+ A% AEBYBEBERLT
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FEEETAEENELEN YAEBEEM
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (continued)

Senior management (continued)

Mr. Liu Wei Chao, aged 43, joined the Group in 1996 and is the
chief financial officer of the Group's retail operations. He has more
than 24 years’ experience in accounting. Mr. Liu holds a Master’s
degree in business administration from the University of Western
Sydney, Australia. He is a member of the Chinese Institute of

Certified Public Accountants and CIA (Certified Internal Auditor).

Mr. Kelven Su, aged 44, is the general manager of the Group’s
retail operations in Shanghai. He joined the Group in 1998 and has

more than 20 years' experience in the retailing industry.

Mr. Ting Kit Hung, aged 56, is the director and chief executive of
the Group’s motor vehicles and generators services operations in
the Mainland China. He is an associate member of the Institute
of Motor Industry, the Chartered Institute of Transport and the
British Institute of Management. He also holds a Master’s degree
in business administration from The University of East Asia,
Macau. He joined the Group in 1995 and has more than 38 years’
experience in the motor industry. He is the elder brother of Mr.

Ting Kit Chung.

Mr. Wong Tung Yiu, aged 53, is the director and general manager
of Nice Dyeing Factory Limited, a subsidiary of the Group engaged
in the sale of finished knitted fabric and dyed yarn. He joined
the Group in 1994 and has more than 34 years’ experience in the

textile industry.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 March 2008, the interests and short positions of the directors
in the share capital and underlying shares of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”),

were as follows:

EERROKEBRO ESERKR

REZZEZENF=ZA=Z+-—H RBE(RFRHE
RBIYEIGFMEFHELTH  IRBE(LETQ
AERETESFXZNRETA) (REFH )
BARABRBIN  SEZEAQRARABKE
EE (EER(RFRPEMRD) EXVE) BHRA

ERRABRWOT :

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

Number of shares held, capacity and

nature of interest

FRBE . SORERNE

Percentage of

Directly or Through Through the Company's

beneficially spouse or controlled issued share

Name of director Espgs owned  minor children corporations Total capital
BEEARDH

EEDR BRED ERITRA

ERER ABREFR BEEHQATF &t B E

Poon Bun Chak BWE 31,638,000 168,800,104 456,450,000? 656,888,104 49.5
Poon Kai Chak BEE 7,202,800 — — 7,202,800 0.5
Poon Kei Chak EHOE 21,477,200 — 41,922,000® 63,399,200 4.8
Poon Kwan Chak E#E 13,270,800 - — 13,270,800 1.0
Ting Kit Chung THRE 1,600,000 — = 1,600,000 0.1
75,188,800 168,800,104 498,372,000 742,360,904 55.9

25
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Notes:

(1) The 168,800,104 shares are owned by Farrow Star Limited, which is
wholly-owned by Perfection (PTC) Inc. as a trustee for The Evergreen
Trust, a discretionary trust, the beneficiaries of which include the
family members of Mr. Poon Bun Chak. These shares are held through

his spouse or minor children in accordance with the SFO.

2) The 456,450,000 shares are owned by Giant Wizard Corporation in
which Farrow Star Limited has an 97.15% equity interest. A 2.85%

interest in Giant Wizard Corporation is owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak.

(3) The 41,922,000 shares are held by Treasure Link International
Holdings Limited (“Treasure Link”), in which Mr. Poon Kei Chak and

his spouse each owned 50% equity interests.

Long positions in share options of the Company:

EERNROREEROZEERAR

(1)

@

3

&)

Hist -

168,800,104 1% I 14 Hi Farrow Star Limited# & + i
#Z 23 & Rl £ Perfection (PTC) Inc. XA The Evergreen
TrustZ it A B2 EHE  Z2EEAZEm
ANBEEWELLEZRERE - RIB(EFRE
BE®kH)  ZEROBRUEERKREFFLHIF
B o

456,450,000 A% K& 17 i Farrow Star Limited # &
97.15% Bk 7 & 2 ZGiant Wizard Corporation#
A ° Giant Wizard Corporation. > 2.85% % 2% /1 &
WELEREE -

% 41,922,000 IR IR 17 H & BB 5E 4 R B B 18 % HE
E50% ¥ 25 Z Treasure Link International Holdings
Limited ([ Treasure Link |) ¥ 75 °

RAERBHRZERERS :

Number of share options held

directly or beneficially owned

HEEREREREEBERERSE
Executive directors: HMITES

Poon Bun Chak BWE 1,000,000
Poon Kai Chak BEE 10,500,000
Poon Kei Chak BEHOE 10,500,000
Poon Kwan Chak & 10,000,000
Ting Kit Chung THR 10,000,000

Independent non-executive directors: B IEHITESE :
Au Son Yiu E &R 400,000
Cheng Shu Wing o0 A5 &8 400,000
Wong Tze Kin, David =8 200,000
43,000,000
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2008, none of the

directors had registered an interest or short position in the

shares, underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated

corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section

352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the

Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed in the section “Directors’ interests and short
positions in shares and underlying shares” above and in the section
“Share option scheme” below, at no time during the year were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in
the Company granted to any director or their respective spouse or
minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any other body

corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. Further details of the Scheme are disclosed in note 29

to the financial statements.

EERRORERRO ZEZR KR
(&)

BEXFMES R=ZBENF=A=+—-0 &

EHMERAR TR EABREEZ R - A6

BROF BERER(GES RS RA) H3524%

FURSECREARA  ARBEEFUALNE

ARARRBZ

EECERER
BREBIESRROREERN 2BERKXRE
RUATT BB AR R AT 81 |32 58 DO » R F R
B BMETNESIRETANRBIRAREF
LEBRTHEBALQDANRDMESZNWER > R
REMBTRUSER S AR AHEETHE
DRMESHREALE  RSESTMEMEA
EABRESILEER -

BB E
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MREFEERREHAEEFLEMNSEE
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share

options outstanding during the year:

BREE (#)

TEREBRFARQRBARTEZERENES :

Number of share options

BREZE
Exercise price Exercised
Name or category  Date of grant of of share At 1 April during the At 31 March Exercise period of
of participant share options* options** 2007 year 2008 share options
BRE R-2FLHF R-ZBENF
SRELABAELN BREERAD- TRE MA—RB HRETHE =+—H BRETEHR
HK$ per share
SREHT
Directors
Bs
Poon Bun Chak 11 September 2002 4.97 1,000,000 — 1,000,000 11 September 2002 to
10 September 2012
EWE —2ECF “EE-FAAT-RE
hA+—8H ZE-ZFAATH
Poon Kai Chak 11 September 2002 4.97 7,500,000 — 7,500,000 11 September 2002 to
10 September 2012
BEE —2ECF “EE-FAAT-RE
hA+—H —E-ZERATH
26 March 2004 5.60 3,000,000 — 3,000,000 26 March 2004 to
25 March 2014
—EENEF “EEME=ZA=T+RAZE
=ZA=+xH —E-mNE=ZA=+EH
10,500,000 — 10,500,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

BREE (#)

Name or category  Date of grant of

of participant share options*

SHREZHAEI BREBRRBAH

Number of share options

Exercise price
of share At 1 April
options** 2007
BRE R-S2LF
TEERE MA—H

HK$ per share

HIRBE T

BREZE
Exercised
during the

year

FRETE

At 31 March Exercise period of
2008 share options

R-ZENF

ZA=1t-RH BREGTEHR

Directors (continued)

BE (#)
Poon Kei Chak 11 September 2002
BHE —EECF

AA+—H

26 March 2004

—E2ENEF

=ZA=+xH

Poon Kwan Chak 11 September 2002

BHE —EERCE

AA+—H
26 March 2004

4.97 7,500,000

5.60 3,000,000

7,500,000 11 September 2002 to
10 September 2012
“EE-FAAT-RE
ZE-ZfAAtH
3,000,000 26 March 2004 to
25 March 2014
ZEZMF=A=+ARHEE
“E-mNF=A=+HA

10,500,000

10,500,000

4.97 4,000,000

5.60 6,000,000

4,000,000 11 September 2002 to
10 September 2012
“EE-FEAAT-HE
ZE-ZFAAtH
6,000,000 26 March 2004 to
25 March 2014
ZEEME=ZA=+XRAE

—E-ME=A=1+EA

10,000,000

10,000,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) R E (m)

Number of share options

BREZE
Exercise price Exercised
Name or category  Date of grant of of share At 1 April during the At 31 March Exercise period of
of participant share options* options** 2007 year 2008 share options
BRE R-2FLHF R-ZBENF

SRELABAEN BREEKAH TEER mA—B FrEfTE ZA=Z+-H0 BRETESR

HK$ per share
SREHT
Directors (continued)
EE(4)
Ting Kit Chung 11 September 2002 4.97 4,000,000 — 4,000,000 11 September 2002 to
10 September 2012
THS —ETCF “EE-FAAT-RE
hA+-—8H ZE-ZFAAtH
26 March 2004 5.60 6,000,000 — 6,000,000 26 March 2004 to
25 March 2014
—ZEENEF —EEMFE=A=T+RAZE
=ZA=tRXH “E-mNF=A=+HA
10,000,000 — 10,000,000
Au Son Yiu 11 September 2002 497 200,000 — 200,000 11 September 2002 to
10 September 2012
B R —EERCF ZEE-EAAT-HE
AAt-8 ZE-ZFAAtH
26 March 2004 5.60 200,000 — 200,000 26 March 2004 to
25 March 2014
—EENE ZEEME=ZR+XRAZE
=A=+RXH “EZ-MFE=A=+HA
400,000 — 400,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) R E (m)

Number of share options

BREZE
Exercise price Exercised
Name or category  Date of grant of of share At 1 April during the At 31 March Exercise period of
of participant share options* options** 2007 year 2008 share options
BRE R-2FLHF R-ZBENF

SREZBAEN BREEKAH TEERE mA—B Freffkt ZA=Z+-H0 BRETEHER

HK$ per share
SREH T
Directors (continued)
B (&)
Cheng Shu Wing 11 September 2002 4.97 200,000 — 200,000 11 September 2002 to
10 September 2012
LS —2ECF “EE-FART-RHE
hA+—8H ZZ-ZFRAtH
26 March 2004 5.60 200,000 — 200,000 26 March 2004 to
25 March 2014
—ETMEF “EEMFE=ZA=T+RAE
=ZA=tRXH —E-mFE=B=+HA
400,000 — 400,000
Wong Tze Kin, David 26 March 2004 5.60 200,000 — 200,000 26 March 2004 to
25 March 2014
4= —EEMmE ZEEME=ZRATRAZE
=A=+RXH “E-WME=F=THA
43,000,000 — 43,000,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) BT & ()
Number of share options
BREZE
Exercise price Exercised
Name or category  Date of grant of of share At 1 April during the At 31 March Exercise period of
of participant share options* options** 2007 year 2008 share options
BRE R-BELF R=ZBBN\F
SRELABAELN BREERAD TREEH MA-B FREAE =ZA=+—-H0 BRETEDHR
HK$ per share
GREH T
Other employees
HitEE
In aggregate 11 September 2002 4.97 1,250,000 (650,000) 600,000 11 September 2002 to
10 September 2012
R —EERCH ZZEE-ERAAT-HE
AA+—H ZZ-ZFRAtH
26 March 2004 5.60 6,600,000 (1,430,000) 5,170,000 1 April 2006 to
25 March 2014
ZEZIMEF “EERNFNA-BE
=HA=+xH —E-WE=AZ-+HH
7,850,000 (2,080,000) 5,770,000
50,850,000 (2,080,000) 48,770,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
Notes:
r The vesting period of the share options is from the date of the grant

until the commencement of the exercise period.

** The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in
the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the

Company’s share capital.

The weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares immediately
before and at the exercise dates of the share options was HK$6.34 and

HK$6.28 respectively.

The binomial model is a generally accepted method of valuing options. The
significant assumptions used in the calculation of the values of the share
options were the risk-free interest rate, expected life, expected volatility and
expected dividend. The measurement dates used in the valuation calculation

were the dates on which the options were granted.

The values of share options calculated using the binomial model are subject
to certain fundamental limitations, due to the subjective nature of and
uncertainty relating to a number of assumptions of the expected future
performance input to the model, and certain inherent limitations of the

model itself.

The value of an option varies with different variables of certain subjective
assumptions. Any change to the variables used may materially affect the

estimation of the fair value of an option.

BREE (#)

Htat -

* EREREAR I HBREREALEZITEARN
2B 1E

o ERENTRERA D AR XK EALR % E KR
A BRI ] T o

REZBRETE A RRITE AR G NEFE
W 1B 5 Bl B8 #6.34 7T R 7B #6.28 7T °

THEABRAD —MREEZHEETEHNREF — & - AR
FEEREEENEERRGIEERRTE A F
B BESIHRIERFALKRE - AU EMENAHD

UZBAEATE LN BREEERRRELE LR
# - BIEAUBAZEXE TR REBE R R LB
BERTHEY  REZBEALFGHRLRALBIRAE o

R EEEER L WERGTATREETED *
RANTRAZOSE TRERENEBEMA LA
fist e
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
At 31 March 2008, the following interests of 5% or more of the
issued share capital of the Company were recorded in the register
of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to

Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

FTERRREMATREG REERG

&

RZZBENFEZA=+—B UTHEEEXRQLAE
BITRASNFIU LR  ERB(ESZRHE
RPI) EBIRRECHNESZTMA -

Capacity and

Number of ordinary

Percentage of the

Company'’s issued

Name nature of interests shares held share capital
EARE
=x: BORERNMEE FAEEBERHE ERTREAES X
Shanghai Industrial Through controlled corporation 92,902,000 7.0
Investment (Holdings) EIES QT
Company Limited
The Bank of New York Through controlled corporation 66,861,187 5.0
Hellon Corporation HIEHAT
Heung Mi Kuen Miraner Through spouse 21,477,200 1.6
e ErB
Through controlled corporation 41,922,000 3.2

BRESLH
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

(continued)

FTEREREMATABROREBER A
X ()

Long positions in share options of the Company: RAQRFRZERAE
Percentage of the
Number of Company'’s issued
Name Nature of interest share options held share capital
EEAT
=x EEMEE FEBREHE ERITREABD =
Heung Mi Kuen Miraner Through spouse 10,500,000 0.8

S R

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2008, no person, other
than the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in
the section “Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and
underlying shares” above, had registered an interest and short

position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that

was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed the continuing connected transactions set out below and
in note 35(a)(iii) to the financial statements, which are disclosed
in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”), and have confirmed that these continuing

transactions were entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i)  on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable

to the Group than terms available to or from independent

third parties; and

BREMKEEN R=ZEENF=ZR=+—H &
FERAAL BREARXBEFRRECFARIESZR
BROREERDZEERAR | RE(EFRY
BERPI)EBHRABTERAQARD LHEBER
nmeRERKE -

BUFHDTESCR(ERBBERZMERLA
HEEMRAUNT ETRB D B VAEREERF
BB R T Al B B A% R 3k MY & 35(a)(iii) AV 35 A B 2
R URAZEXZEUTET !

() BASENREESR
(i) BR-—MEEGRIET FHEAKENS -

ZEXRGHWBERTERGETIMEEB T
BE=ENKRI
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of

the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Details of non-exempt continuing connected transactions
In accordance with Rule 14A.35 and 14A.45 of the Listing Rule,
the Group is required to disclose certain details of its non-exempt

continuing connected transactions in compliance with Rule 14A.45.

(1) Lease of a property as retail outlets from a connected person
On 30 April 2007, the Group entered into a lease agreement
with Mountain Rich Limited (“MRL"), a company controlled
and owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an executive director and
controlling shareholder of the Company, to lease from MRL
Tianjin Bin Jiang Fu Shi Commercial Building, No. 282-286 Bin
Jiang Road, He Ping Qu, Tianjin, China as retail outlets for
the retail and distribution business of the Group for a term
of two years commencing from 1 April 2007 at the monthly

rent of RMB650,000.

(2) Lease of a property as a staff quarter from a connected
person
On 28 March 2006, the Group entered into a lease
agreement with Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an executive director
and controlling shareholder of the Company, to lease from
him Unit E, 12th Floor, Tower 2, Fairview Garden, Beijing,
China as a staff quarter of the retail and distribution business
of the Group for a term of three years commencing from 1

April 2006 at the monthly rent of HK$10,000.

KEBRERS (#)

(i) ZEXZRREFEXSOHRETET
RBBRLOFEE WAREERDAARRE
BB R o

TERENBEBEIFHE
B ETRBEI1ABRIMALIERE  KEEA
TEFE VAL KEETERRNITEBFRERSHN

HER o

(1) BE—EEACRE-YEERSTETH
R-ZZFLFOB=+H AKEHELEF
ERAFD(TWLED (RRAANHITESRE
ERRBWEREZERB)BITEHN @
= A AL R B KSR T P BB ST E 282
9 — 286 M KBTI AEE - FAARE
EEZERIHEBNZTEEH BH=
tFNBE-BERBWME BRAHEHEAA
R # 650,000 7T °

2 E—BEEAMFRE-YEEREERES

P

ZEERF=ZAZTNR KEEHEXK
RAMNPTESRERRREWELEEE
PRI RE-E+ ZBEEZEREE
EEZERIHEHKETIBEE2A -A=F
ZERENA-REAM=F BRAHEEA
7 #£10,0007T ©

|

m
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Details of non-exempt continuing connected transactions

(continued)

3)

Lease of a property as a training center from a connected
person

On 15 January 2007, the Group entered into a lease
agreement with Winson Link Enterprises Limited (“WLEL"),
a company controlled and owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak,
an executive director and controlling shareholder of the
Company, to lease from WLEL Room 4207B, 42nd Floor,
Metroplaza, Tower Il, 223 Hing Fong Road, Kwai Chung, New
Territories, Hong Kong from WLEL as a training center of the
Group for a term of two years and four months commencing

from 1 December 2006 at the monthly rent of HK$33,000.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company

and within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the

Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at

the date of this report.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their re-appointment

as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Poon Bun Chak

Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 July 2008

KEBRERS (#)
TERENSRBEXZFH1E ()

() B —BEAMEE - YEERE A

RZZEZELFE-A+HA AEEEKE
HEEEERATRD(AAAAHRTESRER
RREWEEEZEER)EITAH - AHE
BENREBEFTRIBENBEERSE
BEPD+ = 124207BE - fERAEBAYIEIIF
e B-ZBERFE+-A—-BE AHW
FHEAR - SRS HBUE33000TT

RAZABERE
BADNAREZAHENRESTZER  RAE
BEH DRERFARDATOREHERTR
225% °

B B
ZAEMEHAEREE  EARDTEREDE
BIRREFAG LRSABZLBT 2 RE

AEEEm
EE
BWIE

&8 ZEENFLATNH
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The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance and enhancing corporate value and

accountability.

BOARD STRUCTURE AND BOARD PROCESS
The overall management of the Group is vested with the Board
and the day-to-day management of the business is delegated to

the executive management.

The principal roles of the Board are:

(1) to lay down the Group’s objectives, strategies, policies and

business plan;

(2) to monitor the performance of each business segment;

(3) to set appropriate policies to manage risks in pursuit of the

Group's strategic objectives.

The Board comprises of eight members. The five executive directors
include Messrs. Poon Bun Chak, Poon Kai Chak, Poon Kei Chak,
Poon Kwan Chak and Ting Kit Chung. The three independent non-
executive directors include Messrs. Au Son Yiu, Cheng Shu Wing
and Wong Tze Kin, David. Mr. Poon Bun Chak is the chairman and

chief executive officer (“CEO") of the Company.

AEEERERSRENDEEAREALEE
EMBEN -

EEZ2ERERER
EFTREELEEEENES AEHITNER
&

EFENTERE:

() BEASEER - X SIEREHTE

Q EESEXBIENRRE

B) EAEEXRBUEBEHTSENBENE
HEE R e

EE2EENERE - ANHTESEBEEWE
TEBEERE - BRELRE - BHELRER
THALE ZUBYFATESCRELRL
£ BERTEREERELE - BWELLERS
NAETERESLLEE -
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BOARD STRUCTURE AND BOARD PROCESS (continued)

The Company has in place clear Board process. Regular Board
meetings are scheduled at least four times per year. Agendas and
accompanying Board papers are served to all directors at least
14 days in advance of each Board meeting to facilitate informed
discussion and decision-making. Directors may include any matters
they wish to discuss in the meeting in the agendas. Draft minutes
of the Board and committee meetings are prepared by the
company secretary of the Company. The Board and committee
minutes are kept by the company secretary and are open for
inspection by directors upon request. All directors have access to
the advice and services of the company secretary, and are allowed
to seek external professional advice if needed. All directors are
kept informed of the latest update of the Listing Rules and other

applicable regulatory requirements.

Newly appointed directors will receive a comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on the first occasion of their appointment
so as to ensure that they have appropriate understanding of the
business of the Company and the obligation and responsibility of

being a director.

INDEPENDENCE AND QUALIFICATION OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has three INEDs on its Board in compliance with Rule
3.10(1) of the Listing Rules. All the INEDs possess a wide range of
business and financial experience. One of the INEDs, Mr. Wong Tze
Kin, David, possesses professional accounting qualification in full
compliance with Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. In accordance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, all the INEDs have confirmed

their independence for the year ended 31 March 2008.

ETSRBREERR @)
AARNBEAWNESERERF -SEHRE
BEERORMK - BRERANHRETR
% BRESEEANFORTORAFEESY
KEBEERREEEN EEFTERNES
SRR ABAENHRNEE AQFAT
REAEERRFHESERZEETNEEE
% EEEREREVNEHNESERESES
B EEEERERAANBREAERR
B UEEBEREREGHRNELES o
FEEE—EREYRFN L TIRAR LA
SEBI R o

ERERENES THE-REZER g
E-2HEMEN ERNRENFTONE  UE
REHAQAFEBHABRERES -—BEESH

B

BUFHTESNBEIMRER

AABHFELETRAUEIIOMENER - HES
SEREZEBUFITES MEBIFHUTE
EEBEAEMANEBRYBER - HP— B
FUTESEAREEBEREXTHERK Ak
EHELEMRAEIIQQHENER - REZ=F
ENFZA=+—-HLEFE FEBIFHTE
BOREMRAEIBRERAB LT -
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BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS EEZEeRZESSE
&

Attendance of the Board and committee meetings during the year:

Number of meetings attended/held during the year
TFERSE " BHTEBERE

Audit Remuneration Nomination

Directors Board Committee Committee Committee
BEE EEE® EREEE FWEREE REEES
Executive directors HITES
Poon Bun Chak BEWE 23 NATER NATEAR NATEA
(Chairman & CEO) (EEFEFZHLE)
Poon Kai Chak BEEE 23 NATER NATEAR NATEA
Poon Kei Chak BEHE 33 NATRER NATER NATEMR
Poon Kwan Chak BiIE 273 N/AT 18 N/AT 18 N/A T3 A
Ting Kit Chung THR 3/3 N/AT 78 33 0/0
Independent non-executive BIEHIT
directors =
Au Son Yiu |ed 3/3 2/2 3/3 0/0
Cheng Shu Wing [E e 3/3 2/2 3/3 0/0
Wong Tze Kin, David =82 2/3 1/2 2/3 0/0
BOARD COMMITTEES EEXET

The Board has established several board committees to oversee EZEBEERUBBEESZEGEUERALFER

certain aspects of the Company’s affairs. FHEEHE -
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee consists of the three independent non-
executive directors of the Board namely Messrs. Wong Tze Kin,
David, Au Son Yiu and Cheng Shu Wing. The committee is chaired
by Mr. Wong Tze Kin, David, a qualified accounting professional.
At the time of establishment, the terms of reference and duties
have been laid down as a guideline for the committee. The

principal duties of the committee include:

(@) monitoring the preparation of the financial statements;

(b)  monitoring and assessing the internal controls system of the

Group;

(c)  monitoring the performance of Group’s internal audit team;

(d) considering the appointment and removal of the external

auditors, the audit fee and the terms of engagement; and

(e) reviewing and commenting on the connected transactions of

the Group.

The committee held two meetings during the year to review the

followings:

(a) the internal controls and risk management of the Group; and

(b) the financial reporting process and the financial statements

of the Group.

EREEE
ENEECEHRESEN =B IUFHUTES
DHAERRLE BRBELERBEELEE -
EERELEAZEENIER  BEREEXETE
o RBE  ZESHANBZHKIRBES
BIfFiE5| - ZESTEREBRRE

(@) EZEFBMROHT

(b) EBEERFEASEADEERRSR

(0 EEFAEERNBBIFAZIRRE

d ZEIBEBOANEARBR  FEMR
REBGR R

() BERAEBEZBEERS AYRHER -

(@) FEENABEZHERBEBRERE X

(b) FEBUBERREFRBBRSE -
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee consists of three independent non-
executive directors and one executive director namely Messrs.
Au Son Yiu, Cheng Shu Wing, Wong Tze Kin, David and Ting Kit
Chung, respectively. The committee is chaired by Mr. Au Son Yiu.
At the time of establishment, terms of reference and duties have
been laid down as a guideline for the committee. The committee is
responsible for making recommendation on the Company’s policy
and structure for all the remuneration of directors and other
senior management, and reviewing and approving compensations
payable to directors. The remuneration of the directors and
other senior management is determined with reference to the
performance of each individual and the Company, the market
conditions and the industry practice. Besides, the committee will
ensure that no director or any of his/her associate may be involved
in the determination of his’/her own remuneration. During the
year, the committee held three meetings to review and approve
the remuneration adjustment and performance bonus of executive

directors and other senior management.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee consists of three independent non-
executive directors and one executive director namely Messrs.
Cheng Shu Wing, Au Son Yiu, Wong Tze Kin, David and Ting
Kit Chung, respectively. The committee is chaired by Mr. Cheng
Shu Wing. The Nomination Committee is responsible for the
recommendation of candidates with appropriate experience and

qualification to become members of the Board.

FHEES
YHEESERZNUBYFITESR —LH
TES 2 ABLEBELE  BEELEE-EB
BEARTHIELELE BRBEERZEENE
o RBYWKGR ZESHARBNKEIRE
BEMBFIES - RESXTEEEHMALAESR
HitSEEBASNFHIEREBRMAZR -
VTERENESNEE RETESEREMSE
EEAENFH ZEESEZAENRE K
DRRYE  MHEBERRATENEG - 1L £E
ETERRAIEBECMNEERABBEALZEE
ARESNEM - -RERN ZEEBRRTEE=
R UBHATEERAMSEASNHHAR
RBERBBHAOTEAL ©

REZEESE
REZERREZUBIKUTEER—AH
TES HRABHEEE BLRLE  &EH
BELRTHRELE - BHRELREEGCE
Bo-REZERBEREAEBALCRREEZ
ATERESEME -
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code of the Listing Rules
as the Company’s code of conduct for dealings in securities of
the Company by the directors. Based on specific enquiry of the
Company'’s directors, they have all complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the accounting

period covered by the annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE PROVISIONS SET OUT
IN THE CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES (THE "CODE")

In the opinion of the directors, the Company complied with the

code provisions of the Code contained in Appendix 14 of the

Listing Rules throughout the accounting period covered by the

annual report, except for the following deviations:

(1)  Under code provision A.1.1 of the Code, board meetings
should be held at least four times a year at approximately

quarterly intervals.

As the Board has planned the objectives, strategies, policies
and risk management, the Board held three meetings
during the year to discuss the dividend declaration, the
internal control findings and recommendations of the Audit

Committee and the Remuneration Committee.

(2) Under code provision A.4.1 of the Code, non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term and be

subject to re-election.

All the existing non-executive directors of the Company are
not appointed for specific term, but are subject to retirement
and re-election at the Company’s annual general meeting
in accordance with Clause 86(1) of the bye-laws of the

Company.

ERETZERRS

ARRABHRMETRAZBETA - FRADT
EEETARABFRH2FR - BARAEE
BE2EH SESURAFHRALZGHHH

BITREFRHZHRE -

&

BREEXERERATU(SAD
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HRNESSCEFEER - FB - - HERE
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EER - ERZEENANERREE
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE PROVISIONS SET OUT

(3)

(4)

IN THE CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES (THE "CODE") (continued)

Under code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and

should not be performed by the same individual.

The Company does not have a policy of separating the
roles of chairman and chief executive officer of the Board.
The Board considers the current arrangement can help
maintaining a strong management position and at the same
time improving the communication efficiency. The Board may
consider the separation of the roles of chairman and chief

executive officer upon the then circumstances.

Under code provision E.1.2 of the Code, the chairman of
the Board should attend the annual general meeting of the

Company.

The chairman of the Board of the Company has delegated
the duty of attending the annual general meeting to an
executive director of the Company. The chairman considers
the executive director a suitable person for taking up such
duty as the executive director has been serving for similar
duties for many years and he has good understanding of

each business segment of the Group.

HeabXERERATAU(SAD @)
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@

FHA2LIGRAEEIRERESELEZAB
&R - X FEHRE— AEE -

BAl - ARBAUREHEBHESTS 2 X
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
During the year, fees paid for audit and non-audit services by the

Company were as follows:

3 Gl ke
RER  AARXMHBHREBHRBBS

Services Fee paid/payable
PR % e ENEAR
HK$°000

BT T

Audit services rendered EIRMBETRE 3,121
Non-audit services rendered BIRMHFEBRTRE 157
3,278

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for preparing the financial statements

of the Company. The statement from the external auditors of

the Company about their responsibilities has been set out in the

Independent Auditors’ Report on page 47.

REVIEW OF THE INTERNAL CONTROLS

The system of internal controls is defined as the internal control
procedures with which the Company uses to ensure the accuracy
of its accounting records, safeguard the assets of the Company and
ensure the compliance with the relevant rules and regulations. The
Board is responsible for maintaining efficient and effective internal
controls of the Company. During the year, the internal audit team,
which reports directly to the Audit Committee, has reviewed the
internal controls of each major business segment of the Company
and has reported its findings to the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee is satisfied with the effective internal controls of the

Company.

ESERBREMEMBBRRZ2ER

ESS8ERHLADAPHEE - AR A%
BMABHUNBERR 2 EEEACHNETE

2B RHENERE o

MAREE 1% 2 B
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS
To enhance the communications with shareholders and investors,

the Company has adopted the following communication channels:

(1) meeting shareholders in the annual general meetings to
explain the results of the Company and answer the questions

of shareholders;

(2) disseminating corporate information to shareholders

according to the rules and regulations;

(3) meeting fund managers to promote the business of the

Company; and

(4) publishing the background, the latest development and the

results of the Group on the Company’s website.
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Independent Auditors’ Report &3 & B ETRE

Elf ERNST & YOUNG
= K

To the shareholders of
Texwinca Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Texwinca
Holdings Limited set out on pages 50 to 164, which comprise
the consolidated and Company balance sheets as at 31 March
2008, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the

circumstances.
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(REREHMAT 2 ERAT)
51 2 18
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FERFERSBRANGFSHTRER URE
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EERMBRRARENEL
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BER BRERGEHEFHAREEN QA1
BT BRREBEORNIES - UEMBHRRTF
EHRRFREBERMEFMERERRM B2
MEMBENSHEE  REBRFHEENS
FHEET ©
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for

the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

BBEHNEE

EMWEIRRBEMNEBLEZS M HRERE
RER - EBEMEERRERE19BIF(ATZE)E0
RORE  EOEBRRBRE o BRI BM
MBEETTAEAMAR - RNV ARARE
ENAE  HEMEMATEEHAEEREME -

EMEREBEBESHMOSHMANTBEETER
ETER SLENEREMNBTEREREG X
RERHTER UEEREZSUBERRRD
TEEEMERERRL -

ERSRATRFUEREEMBERERMAESHE
REEERNNERZERE - IBENEFIUAREZ
HAMHE - BEF AR N RS R E
BHREFAERERRANER - EFEZSE
B RBMZREZARARANEEM L A
DI RBENRIIES - URFBEENE
MA2FF B33 A H N R K9 A AR AR B B RBE B R
BR - BRTBEFEESMRANS T REN
BEMEAEHNSETHNSEM  URFE
MBBRROBERIHRE N -

EMEE RMAESZERERREMNEE 1
AEMNELSRREMHER -



Independent Auditors’ Report &3 #Z E BT 3R &

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
March 2008 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the

disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

18/F, Two International Finance Centre,
8 Finance Street, Central,

Hong Kong

18 July 2008
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Consolidated Income Statement %34 Ff 3R

Year ended 31 March 2008 #Z —EENF=ZH=1+—HIFE

2008 2007
—EENEF —EEtHF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BtaE EBETFT BT T
REVENUE A 5 9,669,206 8,298,552
Cost of sales $H £ B AN (6,429,104) (5,656,539)
Gross profit EF 3,240,102 2,642,013
Other income and gains Hibw A & W= 5 136,714 128,867
Selling and distribution costs HERDHEHER (1,652,477) (1,533,792)
Administrative expenses THER (521,980) (504,360)
Other operating expenses, net Hih&EEBH T8 (7,983) 1,730
Finance costs B%E R 8 (42,884) (49,801)
Share of profit of an associate, FEALHE A RER
net of tax FRBLEBFEE 62,483 48,211
PROFIT BEFORE TAX R % A0 R 6 1,213,975 732,868
Tax wE 9 (254,843) (107,047)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REERR 959,132 625,821
Attributable to: BB
Equity holders of the Company RPARERFTEE 10 926,351 625,148
Minority interests LR REDR 32,781 673
959,132 625,821
DIVIDENDS BE 11
Interim 1 Hp 239,132 159,155
Proposed final R R A 331,750 198,913
570,882 358,068
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO SREAARZE#ER
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE FEEERER
COMPANY (HK cents) (GBEAU) 12
Basic BN 69.8 471
Diluted #E% 69.4 47.1




Consolidated Balance Sheet G2 EEEE/E

31 March 2008 —EZENF=/A=+—H

2008 2007
—EENF —EZ2LHF
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
HtaE BT T BT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME- - BERRE 13 2,367,458 2,323,532
Investment properties REYE 14 123,208 119,682
Prepaid land lease payments L EER 15 24,810 24,773
Construction in progress EEIR 16 148,701 38,513
Trademarks EE 17 33,293 33,293
Interest in an associate REE QT 2 Em 18 104,764 121,464
Long term rental deposits RS EZ: 119,358 126,148
Total non-current assets BIEREBEE 2,921,592 2,787,405
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories =78 20 1,587,075 1,290,340
Trade and bills receivables EWERR R EKRE 21 1,017,885 1,090,387
Prepayments, deposits and FEARE - -FTER
other receivables H i & U BR 5K 483,593 403,850
Derivative financial assets TEEREE 22 62,335 25,588
Cash and cash equivalents BHeRIRTLHEE 23 817,617 244,829
Total current assets BRBERE 3,968,505 3,054,994
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Due to an associate EABE QT 19 20,141 15,605
Trade and bills payables EAERRRENRE 24 993,861 950,918
Other payables and accrued liabilities HiENERRRETEE 25 363,552 248,271
Derivative financial liabilities PTESmARE 22 19,438 196
Tax payable EABE 312,656 202,250
Interest-bearing bank borrowings M 2R 1T E K 26 434,781 546,785
Total current liabilities SR B=K 2,144,429 1,964,025
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
31 March 2008 —EZENF=H=+—H

mEEERER

2008 2007
—ZEENF —ETLHF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BtaE BT T BT T
Net current assets MEBEEFE 1,824,076 1,090,969
Total assets less current liabilities REERRRBAR 4,745,668 3,878,374
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings M AR ITE K 26 812,769 557,791
Deferred tax IEIE 18 27 16,614 5,560
Total non-current liabilities BIEREEE 829,383 563,351
Net assets FEE 3,916,285 3,315,023
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to equity ERAREEREE
holders of the Company Bz
Issued capital 2RITRA 28 66,356 66,314
Reserves & 30(a) 3,421,246 2,982,853
Proposed final dividend BIRKERE 11 331,750 198,913
3,819,352 3,248,080
Minority interests LEBRRER 96,933 66,943
Total equity HRER 3,916,285 3,315,023
Poon Bun Chak Ting Kit Chung EE EE
Director Director EWIE THA
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 5B EHREXR

Year ended 31 March 2008 BiZ—FEENF=ZHF=1+—HIFE

2008 2007
—EENF —ZTELHF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
BtaE BT T BT T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REFMBEERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax Rt A a7 1,213,975 732,868
Adjustments for: P
Finance costs BKE A 8 42,884 49,801
Share of profit of an associate, FALEE A BDER
net of tax MRBiEFEE (62,483) (48,211)
Interest income FE WA 5 (14,957) (11,728)
Net fair value gains on foreign MNESTESR I A
exchange derivative financial AR
instruments W& F R 5 (56,904) (51,363)
Fair value loss/(gain) on investment BEMEAIAE
properties BB () 14 872 (460)
Depreciation e 6 320,949 292,939
Recognition of prepaid land FEAT L ith
lease payments HERZER 6 651 644
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of HEYE BERKRE
property, plant and equipment &iE (k) 6 3,912 (4,111)
Provision for slow-moving inventories REFTERE 6 11,188 48,540
Impairment/(write-back of impairment) FEWBRFURE,
of trade receivables CRIERS[E) 6 (294) 378
Operating profit before HEES
working capital changes EE AL RF 1,459,793 1,009,297
Increase in inventories F &1 N (307,923) (95,312)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and EUNERF R EWEE
bills receivables WA () 72,796 (216,731)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and EARE- -FTE2K
other receivables H b P& W BR FR 4B N (79,728) (3,801)
Increase/(decrease) in an amount due FENEE AT
to an associate ORL2) 4,536 (67,060)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and BRI R ENSEE
bills payables i, CRd) 22,943 (34,074)
Increase in other payables and Hit e BRI
accrued liabilities FEET & EE N 92,317 65,253
Cash generated from operations KEMBRS 1,264,734 657,572
Profits taxes paid ENMEHR (133,383) (59,097)
Net cash inflow from REE
operating activities RERANFE 1,131,351 598,475
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement G5B ERE R

Year ended 31 March 2008 #Z —EENF=ZH=1+—HIFE

2008 2007
—EENE —EEtHF
Notes HK$'000 HK$000
BtaE BT T BT T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETBHHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received 2 W F 14,957 11,728
Proceeds from derivative TEEm
financial instruments TEREWKWA 39,399 34,926
Dividends received from an associate 2l E A TRE 48,000 84,000
Purchases of items of property, BEYE BRERRZE
plant and equipment BB 13 (186,356) (512,342)
Additions to construction in progress EEIRZARE 16 (105,626) (96,939)
Additions to trademarks BEZRE 17 — (66)
Proceeds from disposal of items HEWME BENRKRE
of property, plant and equipment HE WA 17,644 31,803
Decrease/(increase) in long term RHASESRED
rental deposits (38 hn) 6,790 (18,385)
Decrease/(increase) in non-pledged RETZB=@A
short term time deposits M EE 2 IR A e
with original maturity longer HEBRER
than three months when acquired WA () (496,086) 15,600
Net cash outflow from investing activities REZHR &R E FH (661,278) (449,675)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHEESRE
ACTIVITIES
Issue of new shares BITHR 28 11,239 —
Repurchase of shares B [ iR 19 28 (6,842) =]
New bank loans and trust receipt loans HBETETIRETIER 3,387,461 643,106
Repayment of bank loans and EERTERK
trust receipt loans EREX (3,309,544) (431,824)
Interest paid 2NFE (42,884) (49,801)
Dividends paid 2RE (438,045) (305,047)
Net cash outflow from financing activities B&E;EE <R &R HEHE (398,615) (143,566)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND ReRBRLEEYZ
CASH EQUIVALENTS 140 FE 5 71,458 5,234
Cash and cash equivalents FHUZ2RER
at beginning of year BHEeZEEY 244,827 235,297
Foreign exchange adjustments SMEFHE 5,246 4,296
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RELHFBAZ2BRER
AT END OF YEAR ReZEY 321,531 244,827
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH ReRREEEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS e DA
Cash and bank balances BHeRIRTLHEE 23 228,667 165,523
Non-pledged short term time deposits AT B=EA W
with original maturity within E| 8 2 SE 4K 4R
three months when acquired EHEBRER 92,864 79,306
Bank overdrafts, unsecured IRITHEX - MK 26 — (2)
321,531 244,827




Company Balance Sheet AR EEEER

31 March 2008 —EZENF=/A=+—H

2008 2007
—EENF —EELHF
Notes HK$000 HK$’000
k=4 BT T BT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NN I 31 1,598,978 1,251,829
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Prepayments B RIE 212 203
Dividends receivable FE UL IR 2 335,000 200,000
Cash and cash equivalents BeERBEBSEEY 23 63 154
Total current assets BREEE 335,275 200,357
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAEE
Other payables and accrued liabilities HtEARRRETEE 25 2,304 771
Interest-bearing bank borrowing Ff SR ITE K 26 56,667 —
Total current liabilities HwWREE s 58,971 771
Net current assets MENEEFE 276,304 199,586
Total assets less current liabilities HEERABEE 1,875,282 1,451,415
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY kRBEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowing M SR 1T E K 26 283,333 —
Net assets BEE 1,591,949 1,451,415
EQUITY EE
Issued capital 2R®ITRAK 28 66,356 66,314
Reserves s 30(b) 1,193,843 1,186,188
Proposed final dividend BORKERE 11 331,750 198,913
Total equity R 1,591,949 1,451,415
Poon Bun Chak Ting Kit Chung = -
Director Director BEWE THE
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Notes to the Financial Statements B & 3R TR Mt5E

31 March 2008 —EZENNF=HA=+—H

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Texwinca Holdings Limited is a limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the
Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The principal place of business
of Texwinca Holdings Limited is located at 16th Floor,
Metroplaza, Tower I, 223 Hing Fong Road, Kwai Chung, New

Territories, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following

principal activities:

o Production, dyeing and sale of knitted fabric and yarn;

° Retailing and distribution of casual apparel and
accessory;

o Provision of franchise services; and

. Provision of repair and maintenance services for motors

and generators.

NAEHR
BAEEEAERAAABREEZEMA
U2BERAF  ALBDZEAMBPERES
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM 11, Bermuda ° Bk EE B AR AT £
EE R BT B R E BT 22358 5
HEESFE_E B -

REAFE SETELEUTER:

e HEATRBYZEHERER,

s ERERHNZZTERDHE

e RUEBTFLERB R

e RHUAERBEBIEBRREMR
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#&¥R3E KMzt

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
investment properties, certain leasehold land and buildings
included in property, plant and equipment, and derivative
financial instruments, which have been measured at fair
value. These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"”) and all values are rounded to the

nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2008. Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the
date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to
be consolidated until the date that such control ceases. All
significant intercompany transactions and balances within

the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside
shareholders not held by the Group in the results and net

assets of the Company’s subsidiaries.

2.1

31 March 2008 —EZENF=/A=+—H

FHBBRRDIBET BSOS RM2
EEMBRELERN (BERESBUBRS
EA - BBRSTEARRE) - BE-RD
REFRAUREFB QARG 2 KEEZRA
mEMM - BRREWE - BOBEETWE
BERXEANEHELHREFRITLES
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2.2

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has adopted the following new and revised

HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial

statements. Except for in certain cases, giving rise to new

and revised accounting policies and additional disclosures,

the adoption of these new and revised standards and

interpretations has had no material effect on these financial

statements.

HKFRS 7

HKAS 1 Amendment

HK(IFRIC)-Int 8

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9

HK(IFRIC)-Int 10

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11

Financial Instruments: Disclosures

Capital Disclosures

Scope of HKFRS 2

Reassessment of Embedded

Derivatives

Interim Financial Reporting and

Impairment

HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury

Share Transactions

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised

HKFRSs are as follows:

(@) HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

This standard requires disclosures that enable users of

the financial statements to evaluate the significance of

the Group’s financial instruments and the nature and

extent of risks arising from those financial instruments.

The new disclosures are included throughout the

financial statements. While there has been no effect

on the financial position or results of operations of the

Group, comparative information has been included/

revised where appropriate.
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(b)

(c)

(d)
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22 HARKEBIEBUBBEEEA

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendment to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements — Capital Disclosures

This amendment requires the Group to make

disclosures that enable users of the financial statements

to evaluate the Group's objectives, policies and

processes for managing capital. These new disclosures

are shown in note 37 to the financial statements.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2

This interpretation requires HKFRS 2 to be applied
to any arrangement in which the Group cannot
identify specifically some or all of the goods or
services received, for which equity instruments are
granted or liabilities (based on a value of the Group’s
equity instruments) are incurred by the Group for
a consideration, and which appears to be less than
the fair value of the equity instruments granted or
liabilities incurred. As the Company has only issued
equity instruments to its directors or employees in
accordance with the Company’s share option schemes,
the interpretation has had no effect on these financial

statements.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

This interpretation requires that the date to assess
whether an embedded derivative is required to be
separated from the host contract and accounted for as
a derivative is the date that the Group first becomes a
party to the contract, with reassessment only if there is
a change to the contract that significantly modifies the
cash flows. As the Group's existing policy of accounting
for derivatives complies with the requirements of the
interpretation, the interpretation has had no effect on

these financial statements.
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2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG

(e)

()

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and

Impairment

The Group has adopted this interpretation as of 1
April 2007, which requires that an impairment loss
recognised in a previous interim period in respect
of goodwill or an investment in either an equity
instrument classified as available-for-sale or a financial
asset carried at cost is not subsequently reversed.
As the Group had no impairment losses previously
reversed in respect of such assets, the interpretation
has had no impact on the financial position or results

of operations of the Group.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share

Transactions

This interpretation requires arrangements whereby
an employee is granted rights to the Group’s equity
instruments, to be accounted for as an equity-
settled scheme, even if the Group acquires the
instruments from another party, or the shareholders
provide the equity instruments needed. HK(IFRIC)-
Int 11 also addresses the accounting for share-based
payment transactions involving two or more entities
within the Group. The Company grants share options
to the employees of its subsidiaries, which may result
in a change of accounting policy for share-based
payment transactions in the financial statements of the
relevant subsidiaries. The interpretation has had no
effect on the financial statements of the Group and the

Company.
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2.3

IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs, which have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these financial statements:

HKFRS 2 Amendments

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 8
HKAS 1 (Revised)

HKAS 23 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 and

HKAS 1 Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14

Share-based Payment — Vesting
Conditions and Cancellations '

Business Combinations 2

Operating Segments '
Presentation of
Financial Statements '

Borrowing Costs '

Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements 2
Puttable Financial Instruments
and Obligations
Arising on Liquidation !

Service Concession Arrangements 3

Customer Loyalty Programmes #

HKAS 19 — The Limit on a
Defined Benefit Asset,
Minimum Funding Requirements

and their Interaction 3

' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#&¥R3E KMzt
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2.3

IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendment to HKFRS 2 restricts the definition of “vesting

condition” to a condition that includes an explicit or implicit

requirement to provide services. Any other conditions are
non-vesting conditions, which have to be taken into account
to determine the fair value of the equity instruments
granted. In the case that the award does not vest as the
result of a failure to meet a non-vesting condition that is
within the control of either the entity or the counterparty,
this must be accounted for as a cancellation. As the Group
has no non-vesting conditions at the balance sheet date, this

amendment is unlikely to have any impact on the Group.

HKFRS 3 (Revised) introduces a number of changes in the
accounting for business combinations that will impact the
amount of goodwill recognised, the reported results in the
period that an acquisition occurs, and future reported results.
As the Group has no such transactions, it is unlikely to have

any financial impact on the Group.

HKFRS 8 will replace HKAS 14 Segment Reporting, specifies
how an entity should report information about its operating
segments, based on information about the components of
the entity that is available to the chief operating decision
maker for the purposes of allocation resources to the
segments and assessing their performance. The standard also
requires the disclosure of information about the products
and services provided by the segments, the geographical
areas in which the Group operates, and revenue from the
Group’s major customers. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS

8 from 1 April 2009.
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IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HKAS 1 (Revised) separates owner and non-owner changes

in equity. The statement of changes in equity will include

only details of transactions with owners, with all non-owner
changes in equity presented as a single line. In addition, this
standard introduces the statement of comprehensive income:
it presents all items of income and expense recognised in
profit or loss, together with all other items of recognised
income and expense, either in one single statement, or in

two linked statements.

HKAS 23 (Revised) has been revised to require capitalisation
of borrowing costs when such costs are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction of production of a qualifying
asset. As the Group’s current policy for borrowing costs
aligns with the requirements of the revised standard, the
revised standard is unlikely to have any financial impact on

the Group.

HKAS 27 (Revised) requires that a change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary is accounted for as an equity
transaction. Therefore, such a change will have no impact on
goodwill, nor will it give rise to a gain or loss. Furthermore,
the amended standard changes the accounting for losses
incurred by the subsidiary as well as the loss of control of a
subsidiary. As the Group currently has no change in control
of its subsidiaries, the revised standard is unlikely to have

any financial impact on the Group.

HKAS 32 and HKAS 1 Amendments permitted a range of
entities to recognise their capital as equity rather than
as financial liabilities, and required additional disclosures
for puttable financial instruments classified as equity. The
amendment reinforces that this is a limited scope exception
to the definition of a financial liability and no analogies

should be made to these requirements.
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2.3

IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 requires an operator under public-to-

private service concession arrangements to recognise the

consideration received or receivable in exchange for the
construction services as a financial asset and/or an intangible
asset, based on the terms of the contractual arrangements.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 also addresses how an operator shall apply

existing HKFRSs to account for the obligations and the rights

arising from service concession arrangements by which a

government or a public sector entity grants a contract for

the construction of infrastructure used to provide public
services and/or for the supply of public services. As the Group
currently has no such arrangements, the interpretation is

unlikely to have any financial impact on the Group.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 requires that loyalty award credits granted
to customers as part of a sales transaction are accounted
for as a separate component of the sales transaction. The
consideration received in the sales transaction is allocated
between the loyalty award credits and the other components
of the sale. The amount allocated to the loyalty award
credits is determined by reference to their fair value and is
deferred until the awards are redeemed or the liability is

otherwise extinguished.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 addresses how to assess the limit under
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits, on the amount of a refund or
a reduction in future contributions in relation to a defined
benefit scheme that can be recognised as an asset, in

particular, when a minimum funding requirement exists.
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IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

As the Group currently has no customer loyalty award credits

and defined benefit scheme, HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 and HK(IFRIC)-

Int 14 are not applicable to the Group and therefore are

unlikely to have any financial impact on the Group.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating

policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to

obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
income statement to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s interests in subsidiaries are stated

at cost less any impairment losses.

23
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FTESTHTHRROEE (#)

68

POLICIES (continued)
Associates
An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary, in which
the Group has a long term interest of generally not less than
20% of the equity voting rights and over which it is in a

position to exercise significant influence.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and reserves
of an associate is included in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated reserves, respectively. The
Group's interest in an associate is stated in the consolidated
balance sheet at the Group’s share of net assets under the
equity method of accounting, less any impairment loss.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the associates, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Adjustments are made to bring into line

any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries and an
associate represents the excess of the cost of the business
combination over the Group's interest in the net fair value of
the acquirees’ identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities and

contingent liabilities assumed as at the date of acquisition.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Goodwill (continued)
Goodwill previously eliminated against the consolidated
retained proits
Prior to the adoption of HKICPA's Statement of Standard
Accounting Practice 30 “Business Combinations” (“SSAP
30") in 2001, goodwill arising on acquisition was eliminated
against consolidated retained profits in the year of
acquisition. On the adoption of HKFRS 3, such goodwill
remains eliminated against the consolidated retained profits
and is not recognised in the income statement when all or
part of the business to which the goodwill relates is disposed
of or when a cash-generating unit to which the goodwill

relates becomes impaired.

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets, investment properties and
goodwill), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or
cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell, and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case, the recoverable amount is determined for the

cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill
(continued)
An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the income statement in the period in which it arises,
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with

the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether
there is any indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill and certain financial assets is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation), had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such impairment loss is credited to the income
statement in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of
the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the

relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

(b)

(o)

(d)

(e)

()

the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, the Group; (ii) has an interest in
the Group that gives it significant influence over the

Group; or (iii) has joint control over the Group;

the party is an associate;

the party is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group;

the party is a close member of the family of any

individual referred to in (a) or (c);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or for which
significant voting power in such entity resides with,
directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in (c) or

(d); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of the Group, or of any entity

that is a related party of the Group.
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POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than investment
properties and construction in progress, are stated at cost or
valuation less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after
items of property, plant and equipment have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the income statement in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated
that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future
economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of
an item of property, plant and equipment and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably, the expenditure is capitalised

as an additional cost of that asset or as a replacement.

Changes in the values of property, plant and equipment are
dealt with as movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If
the total of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on
an individual asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged
to the income statement. Any subsequent revaluation surplus
is credited to the income statement to the extent of the
deficit previously charged. On disposal of a revalued asset,
the relevant portion of the asset revaluation reserve realised
in respect of previous valuations is transferred to retained

profits as a movement in reserves.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost or valuation of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The estimated useful lives used for this purpose are as

follows:

Leasehold land and 25 years or over the remaining
buildings lease terms, whichever
is shorter

Leasehold improvements Over the remaining lease terms

Plant and machinery 10-20 years

Furniture, fixtures and 5 years
office equipment

Motor vehicles 5 years

Yacht 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of that item
is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each

part is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet

date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the income statement in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the

relevant asset.
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POLICIES (continued)
Construction in progress
Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs
of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when

completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating lease for
property which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or
for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the

balance sheet date.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the income statement

in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the income statement

in the year of the retirement or disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties (continued)

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-
occupied properties, the deemed cost of property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of change
in use. If the property occupied by the Group as an owner-
occupied property becomes an investment property, the
Group accounts for such property in accordance with the
policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation” up to the date of change in use, and any
difference at that date between the carrying amount and the
fair value of the property is accounted for as a revaluation in
accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant and

equipment and depreciation” above.

Trademarks

The useful lives of trademarks are assessed to be indefinite.
Trademarks with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-
generating unit level and are not amortised. The useful life
of a trademark with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment
from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective

basis.
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POLICIES (continued)

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included
in non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the
operating leases are credited to the income statement on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group
is the lessee, rentals payable under the operating leases are
charged to the income statement on the straight-line basis

over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included
in the cost of the land and buildings as a finance lease in

property, plant and equipment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. For fabric and yarn, cost is determined on a weighted
average basis and, for work in progress and finished
goods, cost comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of overheads. For casual apparel
and accessory, cost is determined on a weighted average
basis and includes all costs of purchases and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Net realisable value is based on estimated
selling prices less further costs expected to be incurred to

completion and disposal or to make the sale.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge
its risks associated with foreign currency fluctuations. Such
derivative financial instruments are initially recognised
at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair
value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is

positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value on
derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are

taken directly to the income statement.

The fair value of forward currency contracts is calculated by
reference to current forward exchange rates for contracts

with similar maturity profiles.
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POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets

When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments not
at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable
transaction costs. The Group assesses whether a contract
contains an embedded derivative when the Group first
becomes a party to it and assesses whether an embedded
derivative is required to be separated from the host contract
when the analysis shows that the economic characteristics
and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely
related to those of the host contract. Reassessment only
occurs if there is a change in the terms of the contract that
significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be

required under the contract.

The Group determines the classification of its financial assets
after initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate,

re-evaluates this designation at the balance sheet date.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the period generally

established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Such assets are subsequently carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method less
any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and includes fees that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate and transaction costs. Gains and losses are
recognised in the income statement when the loans and
receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as through

the amortisation process.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets
The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there
is any objective evidence that a financial asset or group of

financial assets is impaired.

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.,
the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly or
through the use of an allowance account. The amount of the
impairment loss is recognised in the income statement. Loans
and receivables together with any associated allowance are
written off when there is no realistic prospect of future

recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed by
adjusting the allowance account. Any subsequent reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised in the income statement,
to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not

exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FEEHBERNBE @)
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued) ERMEERE (&
Assets carried at amortised cost (continued) BEBERAARZEE ()
In relation to trade and other receivables, a provision for BEREKREZFEEMERZE E5XEH
impairment is made when there is objective evidence (such EBEWNEBATEENEERAREXR
as the probability of insolvency or significant financial RERNBREN  mHEBERERRER
difficulties of the debtor and significant changes in the EEREEMEEBEABINNEE) B R
technological, market economic or legal environment that REBEMELIEBEREREGKAKE FRE
have an adverse effect on the debtor) that the Group will FIEE FREKRE S REELBERE -
not be able to collect all of the amounts due under the ERHEZ REETBBREBHRE/ELN
original terms of an invoice. The carrying amount of the e BEEBREIEATTWRE R IE
receivables is reduced through the use of an allowance o

account. Impaired debts are derecognised when they are

assessed as uncollectible.

Derecognition of financial assets RIBRREREE
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial LREE(RUWEBR —EH—AHAELUESHE
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is EEZ2— D) EUTERTARIETER

derecognised where:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have . BEEEWBReZEFER
expired;

° the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows from . AREEBREEEEWRMBE LS Z2ER »
the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them BREEFERBEERLEREESZ
in full without material delay to a third party under a THEE=F; 5

“pass-through” arrangement; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash . AREBEBEEWNMBE S 2 ERNE
flows from the asset and either (a) has transferred FoWQ@QEBEEZEBAT T RAKRKE
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or HER > FO)MEEERIRBEEZ
(b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all BRIBOBRBEER BEEEER
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred HREEE o

control of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset.
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum

amount of consideration that the Group could be required to

repay.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (including
interest-bearing loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables and
interest-bearing loans and borrowings are initially stated at
fair value less directly attributable transaction costs and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. The related
interest expense is recognised within “finance costs” in the

income statement.

Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the

amortisation process.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FTESTHTHRROEE (#)
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POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation

under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is

recognised in the income statement.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognised in the income statement or in equity if it relates
to items that are recognised in the same or a different

period directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be

recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts

for financial reporting purposes.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable

temporary differences, except:

. where the deferred tax liability arises from goodwill
or the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the

accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and an associate,
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax

credits and unused tax losses can be utilised except:

o where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor

taxable profit or loss; and
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FTESTHTHRROEE (#)
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POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

. in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and an
associate, deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised. Conversely, previously unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date and are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the

deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at

the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to

the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at
bank, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and
have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash

management.

For the purpose of the balance sheets, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and at bank, including
time deposits, and short term highly liquid investments which

are not restricted as to use.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be

measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over

the goods sold;

(b) from the rendering of services, when the services have

been provided;

() rental income, on a time proportion basis over the

lease terms;

31 March 2008 —EZENF=F=+—H

24 FTESTHTHRROEE (#)

RERBSEEY
REERERERMS  RERKALEE
NEEFERERRTER  URATERK
ERATAEBREMEEZDREABTA
E-RRBAZ=ZEARIBz2EHER
BUHRE BRABRITEREERBR
AEEERRSEEN-BO2EX -

REEEEXRME  RERREZEYE
EFRFAETRBTENR BEEHEAR
YEREARZEHASRBMERE -

Wz TR
MAEEJEESEEANEZERERRE IR
THEEEGEFTER  BKREBEIAANE:

(@) WMHEEER IEEEEZERAR
KB HECEBEES  LAAKEY
THRHEERRIFEERERSE 2

EEZH TERERZHZEER

(b) WMBEHERK MECRHZERYK

B

(© HMHESWA  UHEHNEBENLLE A
=g

85



Notes to the Financial Statements B & 3R Tt 5E

31 March 2008 —EZENNF=/H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FTESTHTHRROEE (#)

86

POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
(d) franchise income, on a time proportion basis, over the

franchise periods; and

(e) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial instrument to the net carrying

amount of the financial asset.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as
a separate allocation of retained profits within the equity
section of the balance sheet, until they have been approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. When these
dividends have been approved by the shareholders and

declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s bye-laws grant the directors the
authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they

are proposed and declared.

Employee benefits

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled

transactions”).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. In valuing equity-settled transactions, no
account is taken of any performance conditions, other than
conditions linked to the price of the shares of the Company

(“market conditions”), if applicable.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled,
ending on the date on which the relevant employees
become fully entitled to the award (the “vesting date”). The
cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions
at each balance sheet date until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the income
statement for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end

of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for awards where vesting is conditional upon a
market condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether or not the market condition is satisfied, provided

that all other performance conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had
not been modified. In addition, an expense is recognised for
any modification, which increases the total fair value of the
share-based payment arrangement, or is otherwise beneficial

to the employee as measured at the date of modification.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FTESTHTHRROEE (#)
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POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as

described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding share options is reflected
as additional share dilution in the computation of earnings

per share.

The Group has adopted the transitional provisions of HKFRS
2 in respect of equity-settled awards and has applied HKFRS
2 only to equity-settled awards granted after 7 November
2002 that had not vested by 1 April 2005 and to those

granted on or after 1 April 2005.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Retirement benefits schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for all of its employees in Hong Kong.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the income
statement as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF

Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
overseas are required to participate in central pension
schemes operated by the local municipal governments. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll costs to the central pension schemes. The
contributions are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the central

pension schemes.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of
the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the

borrowing costs capitalised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FTESTHTHRROEE (#)
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POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded
using the functional currency rates ruling at the date of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date.
All differences are taken to the income statement. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was

determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the
balance sheet date, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into the presentation currency of the Company
at exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date and, their
income statements are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The
resulting exchange differences are included in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign entity, the
deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity relating to
that particular foreign operation is recognised in the income

statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of
the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange

rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,

management has made the following judgements, apart

from those involving estimations, which have the most

significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial

statements:

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an

investment property and has developed criteria in making

that judgement. Investment property is a property held to

earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,

the Group considers whether a property generates cash flows

largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties (continued)

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn

rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that is

held for use in the production or supply of goods or services

or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be

sold separately (or leased out separately under a finance

lease), the Group accounts for the portions separately. If

the portions could not be sold separately, the property is an

investment property only if an insignificant portion is held

for use in the production or supply of goods or services or

for administrative purposes.

Judgement is made on an individual property basis to
determine whether ancillary services are so significant that a

property does not qualify as investment property.

Impairment of assets

The Group has to exercise judgement in determining
whether an asset is impaired or the event previously causing
the asset impairment no longer exists, particularly in
assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred that may affect
the asset value or such event affecting the asset value has
not been in existence; (2) whether the carrying value of an
asset can be supported by the net present value of future
cash flows which are estimated based upon the continued
use of the asset or derecognition; and (3) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections including whether these cash flow projections
are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the
assumptions selected by management to determine the level
of impairment, including the discount rates or the growth
rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could material

affect the net present value used in the impairment test.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)
Judgements (continued)
Income taxes
The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes worldwide.
There are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such

determination is made.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the

next financial year, are discussed below.

Impairment of trademarks

In accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”, the
Group determines whether trademarks are impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the trademarks
are related. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash

flows.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Estimation of useful lives of trademarks
The Group assessed the useful lives of previously recognised
trademarks. As a result of this assessment, the trademarks
were classified as intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives. This conclusion is supported by the fact that the
Group's trademark legal rights are capable of being renewed
indefinitely at insignificant cost and therefore are perpetual
in duration, related to well known and long established
fashion brands, and based on future financial performance
of the Group, they are expected to generate positive cash
flows indefinitely. Under HKAS 38, the Group re-evaluates
the useful lives of the trademarks each year to determine
whether events or circumstances continues to support the

view of the indefinite useful lives of the trademarks.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

The Group considers information from a variety of sources,
including (i) by reference to current prices in an active
market for properties of a different nature, condition and
location (or subject to different leases or other contracts),
adjusted to reflect those differences; (ii) recent prices of
similar properties on less active markets, with adjustments
to reflect any change in economic conditions since the date
of the transactions that occurred at those prices; and (iii)

independent valuations.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information is presented by way of two segment
formats: (i) on a primary segment reporting basis, by business
segment; and (ii) on a secondary segment reporting basis, by

geographical segment.

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and
managed separately according to the nature of their
operations and the products and services they provide. Each
of the Group's business segments represents a strategic
business unit that offers products and services which are
subject to risks and returns that are different from those of
the other business segments. Summary details of the business

segments are as follows:

(a) the production, dyeing and sale of knitted fabric and

yarn segment;

(b) the retailing and distribution of casual apparel and

accessory segment; and

(c) the "others” segment principally comprises the
provision of motor and generator repair and
maintenance services, and the provision of franchise

services.

In determining the Group’s geographical segments, revenues
are attributed to the segments based on the location of the
markets, and assets are attributed to the segments based on

the location of the assets.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to third

parties at the then prevailing market prices.
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

4. DEEH #)

(a) Business segments () XEBoE
The following tables present revenue, profit and TRAXEERZE-_EETNF=A=
certain asset, liability and expenditure information for +T—HBR-—ZEZELF=A=+—HL
the Group’s business segments for the years ended 31 FEZEEIBRA BARIBHE
March 2008 and 31 March 2007: E-BERXHESR:
Group -
Production, Retailing and distribution
dyeing and sale of of casual apparel
knitted fabric and yarn and accessory Others Eliminations Consolidated
HERRRY ERR
LEHRER BNZBERSH At H# iR
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
ZEENE ZETHE ZBENE CZEIRLE ZBENE ZEERLE CBENE CERLE CEENE CETLE
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$000
ERTR EETT ERTR EBTT ERTR ERTT E¥TR BRTT AR BETT
Segment revenue: FEUA
Sales to external EFEE
customers MNEE 5,385,818 4,627,285 4,239,115 3,625,217 44,273 46,050 - - 9,669,206 8,298,552
Intersegment sales AREZHE 200 - - - 2338 2,591 (2,538) (2,591 - -
Other revenue 110N 71,092 76,909 21,507 23,049 23,158 17,181 - — 121,757 117,139
Total B 5,463,110 4,704,194 4,260,622 3,648,266 69,769 65,822 (2,538) (2,591) 9,790,963 8,415,691
Segment results PREE 910,191 664,239 241,766 20,819 32,683 34,197 (5,221) 3,475 1,179,419 722,730
Interest income FIEMA 14,957 11,728
Finance costs BHRER (42,884) (49,801)
Share of profit BB NT
of an associate, wA BE%
net of tax BE 62,483 48,211
Profit before tax BREAER 1,213,975 732,868
Tax HE (254,843) (107,047)
Profit for the year REERR 959,132 625,821
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. SEEH#E)
(a) Business segments (continued) (@ XXo®(E)
Group £ H
Production, Retailing and distribution
dyeing and sale of of casual apparel
knitted fabric and yarn and accessory Others Eliminations Consolidated
HERRRY ERE
LEHRESR HNZBERSH At Fif g8
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
“2E\E CEREE CBENf CERtE CEENf CEELE ZEIENE CETtE ZEENE CEB+E
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
AR BEFT AR BETT AEFR BETT BEFR BEfT BEFT BETL
Assets and liabilities ZEREE
Segment assets PEEE 4,896,238 4,700,738 1,623,903 1,548,541 184,056 78,958 (507,814) (686,608) 6,196,383 5,641,629
Interest REELE
in an associate BR 104,764 121,464
Unallocated assets KABEE 588,950 79,306
Total assets BEE 6,890,097 5,842,399
Segment liabilities PEER 739,241 657,771 1,082,626 1,137,684 71312 103,447 (502,247) (678,351) 1,396,992 1,220,551
Unallocated liabilities ~ k2 E&®E 1,576,820 1,306,825
Total liabilities #eE 2,973,812 2,527,376
Other segment Rt5E
information: B8
Depreciation and fER
amortisation By 197,699 171,618 122,272 120,083 1,629 1,882 — — 321,600 293,583
Capital expenditure ERHERR 215,752 467,653 76,180 141,273 50 355 - = 291,982 609,281
Other non-cash Et#Re
expenses X 11,066 41,61 3,646 3,151 % 46 — — 14,806 44,808
Changes in fairvalue ~ RE#E
of investment NEZ
properties 28 - — 872 — - (460) - — 8n (460)
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. SEEH#E)
(b) Geographical segments (b) HEHIE
The following table presents revenue and certain TRAEAXEBRRZE-ZEENEFE=A=
asset and expenditure information for the Group's +—-—BER=ZZBEZEtF=A=1+—H
geographical segments for the years ended 31 March FFEEigsBRARTHDEER
2008 and 31 March 2007: T HEHR
Group -
USA Mainland China Japan Hong Kong Others liminati ¢
28 HERE BE ] it H# &8
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
ZERNE CERRLE CERNE CTELE CRRNE CRELE CRENE CERLE CRENE CETLE CRENE CERLE CRINE CERLE
HKSO00  HKSO0  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSTO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSOO0  HKSOO0  HKSOO0  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKS'000
E¥Fr  BETn ERFn BMTn ERFn BEFn ERTn BEFn ERTL ERFn BETa ERFn BMTL ERTx
Segment revenue: AEUA
Sales to external customers ETEENEF 3992821 3622174 3194361 2489632 690,033 513,083 564,967 627,887 1,227,004 1,045,776 - — 9669206 8298552
Other segment AbpEEH:
information:
Segment assets FEEE - — 619934 7162705 - — 413964 34TATI4 33159 39689 (4046350) (5191859 6890097 5842399
Capital expenditure BAEER - - 259,519 541,744 - - 18,356 12,466 14,107 55,071 - - 291,982 609,281
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31 March 2008 —EZENF=F=+—H

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA HlWARKRE

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents

WA FRAEEEXRE  ENRERER

the net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for EEMNEZHEHERZTFEE  MIEHRKE

returns and trade discounts, the value of services rendered

and franchise and royalty income, but excludes intra-group EERBRES o

transactions.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and gains

is as follows:

MEEMFFEEREFVRA  EFEFE

REBZWA - HEBRARBE2HOT -

Group
£
2008 2007
ZEENF —EELHF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt e FET FET
Revenue: A
Sale of goods HEER 9,604,952 8,246,041
Rendering of services IBERBE 49,604 38,895
Franchise and royalty income B REREFBA 14,650 13,616
9,669,206 8,298,552
Other income and gains: Hibg A R E :

Interest income FEUWA 14,957 11,728
Gross rental income B‘ESWA 21,985 16,385

Net fair value gains on foreign SHNESTE SR

exchange derivative financial TERARE
instruments W& F 8 56,904 51,363

Fair value gains on REME

investment properties N REWRE 14 — 460
Scrap sales BRI E 5,946 15,989
Sundry income HIE A 36,922 32,942
136,714 128,867
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31 March 2008 —EZENNF=/H=+—H

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. BRBIATER
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ AEBZHRAFNBEER (ML) THE
(crediting): H
Group
58
2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
Notes HK$'000 HK$°000
BtaE FET FET
Cost of inventories sold EEZEYRAK 6,417,916 5,607,999
Depreciation e 13 320,949 292,939
Recognition of prepaid land lease BN EER
payments ZHER 15 651 644
Employee benefits expenses, including EE®AEX -
directors’ remuneration (note 7): BREEEMNE (HZ7)
Wages, salaries and other I FHekHEAfM
allowances =41 1,067,574 880,527
Retirement benefits schemes RKEFIE S
contributions = 8,996 9,575
1,076,570 890,102
Minimum lease payments under REHAET 2R
operating leases in respect of land BFRIE
and buildings HEeEA 700,467 587,077
Contingent rents under KREHET 2
operating leases HAEE 200,422 266,605
Minimum lease payments under KEHET 2
operating leases in respect of plant B T
and machinery BEHESER 7,065 6,654
Auditors’ remuneration % il 3,121 2,774
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of HEWE BMERKEER
property, plant and equipment &iE (k) 3,912 (4,111)
Net foreign exchange gains, excluding [E % U % %48 -
net fair value gains on foreign TEIEINE
exchange derivative financial 2R
instruments THEWRFEHE (199,973) (63,537)
Net rental income HeWAFE (19,568) (15,288)
Provision for slow-moving inventories T &IEE#HERK A
included in cost of sales REGFEERE 11,188 48,540
Changes in fair value of REMEINRE
investment properties 2B E 14 872 (460)
Impairment/(write-back of impairment) FEUEEFURE,
of trade receivables CRIERE) 21 (294) 378
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST

PAID EMPLOYEES

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to

the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange and Section 161 of

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

7.

31 March 2008 —EZENF=F=+—H

EEMEROIUESHFHMES

BBz EHRAREE DR EE161
R AEEESHESRENT

Group
£E
2008 2007
—EENF —EELF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Fees: WwWeE
Executive directors HITES 50 50
Independent non-executive directors BIAFEHITES 810 720
860 770
Other emoluments: Hitbif &
Executive directors: HITES
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e 2MRFERSEF 32,408 30,578
Performance related bonuses* RIBAHIEAL* 77,204 42,364
Retirement benefits schemes RIKEF
contributions TR 60 60
109,672 73,002
110,532 73,772

* The executive directors of the Company are entitled to

discretionary performance payments not exceeding a certain

percentage of the profit after tax of the Group.

* ARAHITEEZE T HBAEBREE
DB & B FIEREEX N RBE#H
TEAL °
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31 March 2008 —EZENNF=/H=+—H

7. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)
(@) Independent non-executive directors
The fees payable to independent non-executive

directors during the year were as follows:

7.

EEMERENVNBESTMNES &)

(a)

BYKBITES
RERENTFBILINTEEZHE
M

2008 2007

—EENF ZETEHF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Au Son Yiu ERRE 270 240
Cheng Shu Wing B A 85 270 240
Wong Tze Kin, David =EHE 270 240
810 720

There were no other emoluments payable to the RER > UER(ZZZ2LF  BE)RB

independent non-executive directors during the year

(2007: Nil).

UHBTESHHMBME -
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31 March 2008 —EZENF=F=+—H

7. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST 7. E=ZM4RENESHEMES (&)
PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

(b) Executive directors (b) HITEE

Salaries, Retirement

allowances Performance benefits
and benefits related schemes Total
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions remuneration

e

)= 3 ®H RKER
ik REEA B TEAL FH 8RR MemE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000

B F T BT T BT T BT T B F T

2008

Executive directors: I {TEZE :

Poon Bun Chak BWE 10 10,015 38,647 12 48,684
Poon Kai Chak EAEE 10 5,295 9,682 12 14,999
Poon Kei Chak BHE 10 7,236 9,682 12 16,940
Poon Kwan Chak BEE 10 4,670 9,692 12 14,384
Ting Kit Chung THE 10 5,192 9,501 12 14,715
50 32,408 77,204 60 109,722

2007

Executive directors: ¥ {TE= :

Poon Bun Chak BWE 10 9,462 20,979 12 30,463
Poon Kai Chak BEE 10 4,968 5,449 12 10,439
Poon Kei Chak EHOE 10 6,857 5,449 12 12,328
Poon Kwan Chak B2 10 4,386 5,449 12 9,857
Ting Kit Chung TR 10 4,905 5,038 12 9,965

50 30,578 42,364 60 73,052
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31 March 2008 —EZENNF=/H=+—H

7. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST 7.
PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)
(b) Executive directors (continued)
There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during

the year.

The five highest paid individuals employed by the
Group during the year were all directors, details of

whose remuneration are set out above.

EEMERENVNBESTMNES &)

(b) HITEE(HE)
VWEEENFEAREREZHEEM
BN E R HE -

AUAEEBRSHFRHAIRFAZRS
B HEMWAMC2MmE -

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. HKEAR
Group
£|
2008 2007
—EENE —EELHE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts ARAEFREHEEN

wholly repayable within five year RITERRBEIZNFE 42,884 49,801
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31 March 2008 —EZENF=F=+—H

TAX 9. BiIE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of EBNGHECRFAREBRM Z M
17.5% (2007: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profits FERBEF U RI75%(ZE2EF L F .
arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits 175%) R EE - T HMEBNWERAE
assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of MIE NRBEAEEEXBEEFAEHEZ
tax prevailing in the locations in which the Group operates, HEZLZ RERER  REBRTHERST
based on existing legislation, interpretations and practices in & o

respect thereof.

2008 2007
—EENF —ETEHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET

Group: £H

Hong Kong and the Mainland China taxes: ZH#&RTBERAEKE

Current year provision INEEEE 113,647 76,443
Underprovision in prior years AFERETIRE 130,142 28,632
Deferred tax (note 27) IEREFRE (FaE27) 11,054 1,972
Tax charge for the year REERIE 254,843 107,047
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31 March 2008 —EZENNF=/H=+—H

9.

TAX (continued)
Details of the underprovision of Hong Kong and Mainland
China taxes in prior years were set out below and in note

32(c), respectively.

During the year, the Guangzhou Municipal Office of the
State Administration of Taxation (the “SAT Guangzhou
Office”) of the People’s Republic of China conducted a
review on the transfer pricing policy of a subsidiary of the
Group's retail and distribution operation in the Mainland
China for the years 1997 to 2005. As a result of the review,
the Group was required to pay approximately RMB61,000,000
of additional Foreign Enterprise Income Tax for the years
1997 to 2005. As at 31 March 2008, the directors of the
subsidiary believe that appropriate tax provision has been

provided.

BB (&)
EEEERTFEARNEIEERBERET
REMHED D BEN T X RME32) o

REFRH PEARAFNEEMTERH
BRTENTERE ] RAEEZTERS
HEBHMBLAREPERAB - AL
FE-ETRECHAMNEETERERENT
EZ REFZNGER  FAEEERERE
B-—NWNLtEEZ-_ZZRAFNIBREDL
2 A0 0B 4k 3 PR 15 B A A R 561,000,000
ToBE-ZENF=ZRA=+—HL" F
ENBARESR AR BRRPORE
BENBIHEMR -
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TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit

before tax using the applicable rates for the countries in

which the Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled to the

tax charge for the year is as follows:

31 March 2008 —EZENF=F=+—H

BIE #)
BERAXADREMBAARCEAR 2B
BA AR EEAREHE 2 RAERTE
AEERERGOT :

Group
£8
2008 2007
—EENF —ZEELHF
HK$'000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Profit before tax R %4 Al % F 1,213,975 732,868
Tax at the domestic tax rates applicable to R BB EREBRETR
profits in the countries concerned 2R ERBIE 70,675 60,844
Adjustments in respect of current tax MEFEN
of previous years BB ERAR 130,142 28,632
Profits and losses attributable to an associate FE{5 & 2 & F| (12,235) (9,495)
Income not subject to tax BEMTF WA (1,753) (4,947)
Expenses not deductible for tax TRMERIENR 2 & A 44,142 15,793
Unrecognised deferred tax assets FRREBR 2 RER
on tax losses ERERBEE 34,879 34,021
Tax losses utilised from previous periods CEHABTHEBERSE (9,711) (14,310)
Others Hith (1,296) (3,491)
Tax charge for the year REERIE 254,843 107,047

The share of tax attributable to an associate amounting to

HK$7,431,000 (2007: HK$6,043,000) is included in “Share

of profit of an associate, net of tax” on the face of the

consolidated income statement.

RS AR IE BB %7,431,000T (=&
T F : B%6,0430007T) B 5t ALRERE
R2EMBEEQRATER » BREEFEIF -
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31 March 2008 —EZENNF=/H=+—H

10. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF 10.

11.

THE COMPANY
The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2008 includes a profit
of HK$574,182,000 (2007: HK$759,075,000) which has been

dealt with in the financial statements of the Company (note

KAREHTE EEEEF

R-ZBEENFEF=ZA=+—HLEFEE A
AATZHERRAZAADEZFEE
R 4REER BB %574,182,000T (ZEF

+ 5 B#759,075,0007T) (KfEE30(b)) °

30(b)).
DIVIDENDS 1. RE
2008 2007
—EENE —EELHF
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET
Interim of HK 18.0 cents AR BRSBTS 18.01L
(2007: HK 12.0 cents) per share (ZEELE B 12.010) 239,132 159,155
Proposed final of HK 25.0 cents BRARHEREYE 25014
(2007: HK 15.0 cents) per share (ZEE+ & : B 15040) 331,750 198,913
570,882 358,068

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming

Annual General Meeting.

FEERRZAPREAGRALIARRR
BERTHRRBFASLES -



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#&¥R3E KMzt

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY

The basic and diluted earnings per share for the years ended

31 March 2008 and 31 March 2007 have been calculated as

follows:

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company and the weighted average

number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company. The weighted average
number of ordinary shares used in the calculation is
the ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used
in the basic earnings per share calculation and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed
to have been issued at no consideration on the deemed
exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary

shares into ordinary shares.

31 March 2008 —EZENF=F=+—H

12 BEALQAEEAREMEESR

27

—EE\FZASt-AR-FBLE=
A=+-ALFEZEFRBEE 2SR
BAMHEMT :

(@) EFXSRAEF
EXRBREFNDEBRA AT E BRI
EERGAEERFIRRFEANT BT
TEBRRO 2 METHIHEE -

(b) #WERSREBRN
BEERBRENDBRAEFEZARQT
EEEEREEREAFERNG
H-ARFEFRERTEBRR M
BFHRHTDARSEERESREF
ZRE RFREUEEBTERER
FEESBREINEEEBERAESE
BR B9 DN FE T SRR B o
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31 March 2008 —EZENNF=/H=+—H

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 12. BEAQAREEEZMEEESR

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

B #)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are BEXAR#BBER2BEREBANGTENT :
based on:
2008 2007
—EENF —EELF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Earnings 2R
Profit attributable to ordinary equity KAREBESMEE
holders of the Company, used in the SR - ARFTEER
basic earnings per share calculation BREF 926,351 625,148

Number of shares

ROBE
2008 2007
—sENE —EBLE

Shares g}
Weighted average number of shares in issue FR{EstEEXEREF

during the year used in the basic earnings 2 E XN E &4TRM ke

per share calculation FHRE

Effect of dilution — weighted average HECoEE —
number of ordinary shares: THEBRRE
Share options B R

1,326,957,809 1,326,288,104

7,338,817 1,502,978

1,334,296,626 1,327,791,082
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31 March 2008 —EZENF=F=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥ BERR®E
Group &
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures Motor
land and Leasehold Plant and and office Vehicles
buildings improvements  machinery equipment  and yacht Total
HEL HE BE HBi- -#ER AER
)T £ BFEE BB BAERE il i it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BEFT  BEFRT BETrT  BETT  BETR

31 March 2008 —EENf=A=1+-H
At 31 March 2007 and R-ZZE+tF=A=+-H
1 April 2007: R-ZZtEWA-B:
Cost or valuation BASEE 1,033,582 570,077 2,193,348 218,165 82,686 4,097,858
Accumulated depreciation ZIHNE (225,863) (393,687) (951,088) (141,470) (62,218)  (1,774,326)
Net carrying amount BREEE 807,719 176,390 1,242,260 76,695 20,468 2,323,532

At 1 April 2007, net of accumulated R=ZE+EMA—A -

deprecation SHNRETE 807,719 176,390 1,242,260 76,695 20,468 2,323,532
Additions hE — 62,643 87,598 17,760 18,355 186,356
Disposals HE — (10,972) (158) (9,867) (559) (21,556)
Depreciation provided during the year & R i & %4 (41,753) (96,737) (149,821) (24,250) (8,388) (320,949)
Transfers from construction HEEIRBA

in progress (note 16) (Kizt16) 1,714 — 3,290 — — 5,004
Foreign exchange adjustments SERE 61,754 10,827 115,841 5,189 1,460 195,071
At 31 March 2008, net of R-BENF=ZA=1+-8"

accumulated depreciation EHREFINE 829,434 142,151 1,299,010 65,527 31,336 2,367,458
At 31 March 2008: RZBENE=ZA=1+-H:

Cost or valuation RASEE 1,118,318 593,994 2,501,484 211,726 82,558 4,508,080

Accumulated depreciation REHE (288,884) (451,843)  (1,202,474) (146,199) (51,222)  (2,140,622)

Net carrying amount EERE 829,434 142,151 1,299,010 65,527 31,336 2,367,458
Analysis of cost or valuation: BAS GBI

At cost AR 1,098,642 593,994 2,501,484 211,726 82,558 4,488,404

At 31 March 1992 R-ANZE=ZA=+-H

valuation fhE 19,676 — — — — 19,676

1,118,318 593,994 2,501,484 211,726 82,558 4,508,080
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31 March 2008 —EZENNF=/H=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

13. V¥ BERRKE @)

Group (continued) &£@ (&)
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures Motor
land and Leasehold Plant and and office Vehicles
buildings improvements  machinery equipment  and yacht Total
HELH HE BE B #BR RER
)T 2 BREE )T 151 BAZRE g i At
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
BT BYFT BT BT EEFT BY¥FrT
31 March 2007 —E2Z2+5=fA=+-8
At 31 March 2006 and RZZERFZAZT-HR

1 April 2006: ZZZXMA-HB:

Cost or valuation RAZEE 960,998 489,920 1,715,255 188,391 74,174 3,428,738

Accumulated depreciation 2EHE (187,888) (341,031)  (781,938) (119,039) (62,445)  (1,492,341)

Net carrying amount REFE 773,110 148,889 933,317 69,352 11,729 1,936,397
At 1 April 2006, net of R-ZZEANA-RB

accumulated deprecation CHBRETTE 773,110 148,889 933,317 69,352 11,729 1,936,397
Additions hE — 118,014 350,298 29,140 14,890 512,342
Surplus on revaluation EffRH 20,177 — - — - 20,177
Disposals HE (18,048) (6,534) (615) (2,143) (352) (27,692)
Depreciation provided during the year £RiTE %% (38,006) (92,674) (132,304) (23,671) (6,284) (292,939)
Transfers from construction HEEIRBA

in progress (note 16) (Ki&16) 105,755 = 40,499 1,804 = 148,058
Transfers to investment properties R RE Y%

(note 14) (Hi£14) (52,400) - - — - (52,400)
Foreign exchange adjustments HEFR 17,131 8,695 51,065 2,213 485 79,589
At 31 March 2007, net of R-ZEE+=A=+-H"

accumulated depreciation BB RITE 807,719 176,390 1,242,260 76,695 20,468 2,323,532
At 31 March 2007: RZEBELFZA=+-0:

Cost or valuation RS EE 1,033,582 570,077 2,193,348 218,165 82,686 4,097,858

Accumulated depreciation 2iiE (225,863) (393,687) (951,088) (141,470) (62,218)  (1,774,326)

Net carrying amount REFE 807,719 176,390 1,242,260 76,695 20,468 2,323,532
Analysis of cost or valuation: BASEEA

At cost %N 1,013,906 570,077 2,193,348 218,165 82,686 4,078,182

At 31 March 1992 R-ANZEZA=+-H

valuation e 19,676 — — — — 19,676
1,033,582 570,077 2,193,348 218,165 82,686 4,097,858
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31 March 2008 —EZENF=F=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 13. 1% BERRE #)
An analysis of the leasehold land and buildings at 31 March R-IZEZNF=ZA=+—HZHEELHR
2008 is as follows: BFEISHFOT :
2008 2007
k-2 J1%-3 “ETtE
1992 1992
Professional Professional
valuation Cost Total valuation Cost Total
-hh=& -hh=F
BEME BAE CH HEMHE BAE Ch
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BEFT BETFT BEFT BETFT
Medium term leasehold land and UREBzPHEE
buildings situated in Hong Kong T REF 19,676 101,443 121,119 19,676 101,443 121,119
Medium term leasehold land and UREEASZ
buildings situated outside FEHEE
Hong Kong THhRES - 997,199 997,199 - 912,463 912,463
19,676 1,098,642 1,118,318 19,676 1,013,906 1,033,582

Certain medium term leasehold land and buildings were
revalued in 1992 by independent professionally qualified
valuers. Since 1993, no further revaluation of the Group’s
leasehold land and buildings has been carried out as the
Group has relied upon the exemption granted under
the transitional provisions in paragraph 80A of HKAS 16
“Property, plant and equipment”, from the requirement
to carry out future revaluations of its property, plant and
equipment which were stated at valuation at that time. Had
such leasehold land and buildings been carried at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation, their carrying amount
would have been approximately HK$7,681,000 (2007:

HK$8,171,000).

HOPHPEHETHREFER-ANZEF
BREIEETEMETEMR - AEEB —
AMNAZFE YEHABE T M REFE
E—SBHMEE BREBETEASE.
HIYWE - BERREB | FEB0ARBIE K
X BRERHEBUERGEARNYE -
BERZBEFREREEEM - i
HELREFRELRAREFTES
IR HERE S BN AR E7,681,0007T (=
ZTLF 1 B¥8171,0007T) °

[
Z%E
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31 March 2008 —EZENNF=/H=+—H

13.

14.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Certain leasehold land and buildings with a total net carrying
amount of HK$52,400,000 were transferred from property,
plant and equipment to investment properties (note 14) in
the last year. During the year ended 31 March 2007, the
surplus on revaluation of these leasehold land and buildings
amounted to HK$20,177,000, of which HK$10,895,000 and
HK$9,282,000 were credited to the asset revaluation reserve

and the minority interests, respectively.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

13. W% BERKE @)
BAOREIHRETEASEBE
52400000 T R E FEHME MR BHESE
BEREWE (HE14) - REE=-2S+
FZA=+-BLEE ZEHEELHR
1B E B8 20,177,000 7T ¢ H B M
10,895,000 7t & & #59,282,000 7t E % 5l E 52
EEEHRBERDBBRRERT

14. BEYE

Group
58

2008 2007

—EENF —EELHF

HK$’000 HK$000

FET FET

Carrying amount at beginning of year REJREE 119,682 66,822
Transfers from owner-occupied property HREEERYE -

included in property, plant and MERREN

equipment (note 13) B AW (Fat13) — 52,400

Net profit/(loss) from fair value adjustments 2 R {EFHEHFRE, (BiE) (872) 460

Foreign exchange adjustments BN 4,398 =

Carrying amount at 31 March R=ZA=+—HAKREE 123,208 119,682
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The investment properties with carrying value of
HK$67,282,000 (2007: HK$67,282,000) and HK$55,926,000
(2007: HK$52,400,000) are situated in Hong Kong and
Taiwan, respectively. All investment properties are held
under medium term leases. The investment properties with
carrying value of HK$67,282,000 were revalued on 31 March
2008 by the directors with reference to the current prices
of similar properties in an active market at nearby locations
adjusted to reflect those differences; as well as recent prices
of similar properties or less active markets, with adjustments
to reflect any change in economic conditions since the
date of the transactions that occurred at those prices. The
investment properties with carrying value of HK$55,926,000
were revalued on 31 March 2008 by Colliers International,
independent professionally qualified valuers, on an open
market, existing use basis. The investment properties are
leased to third parties under operating leases, further
summary details of which are included in note 33(a) to the

financial statements.

During the year ended 31 March 2007, certain investment
properties were transferred from leasehold land and
buildings in Hong Kong of property, plant and equipment
at their 1992 professional valuation. The related asset
revaluation reserve net with its corresponding deferred
tax liabilities of HK$7,470,000 (2007: HK$7,470,000) was
frozen upon the transfer and will be released directly to
retained profits upon the disposal of the related investment

properties.

The gross rental income earned from the investment
properties during the year amounted to HK$21,985,000

(2007: HK$16,385,000).

14.
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REWE (&)

IREE B BH67282000 T (ZEFLF:
7 167,282,000 7T ) K & #55,926,000 7T ( =
ZZ L 152400000) ¥ REWE 2 Bl
REEBREE REVEZBRPHBHEY
BE - REERBY67282,000T 2 REY
EDHEESZEAER™ S T Mt B
HODENRER-ZENF=ZA=+—
BEHE MUR REZE ; BEREMEEL
MENBAERIBRTZTRNTS - Fill
RAELURREMBERSZ BHEREERDN

B2 78 455,926, 000 T By R E W E B T &
EGE BT NEFE AR R ES
ERHSERH RABMTERAEEARR
HERTEM RANMEDUEERNA
FE=E > HMERNRRNSBRHTEIN)

REBZ-_ZZLHE=A=1+—-HLFE"
ETRENMENEBRERE-NANA-FEX
HENYE BERRBFULREBHNE
ErREF FHENEEEGHRBRY
7,470,000 7T ( = & & £ & : & ¥7,470,000
7T EREERNRE  AKRHEARR
EMFEBEEREIREBER -

FARRREMEZBEASWARBYE
21,985,000 T (= ZFZ £ & : 8 % 16,385,000

JT) °
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15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

15. AT HBEER

Group
£H
2008 2007
—EENF —ETtEHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Carrying amount at 1 April REOA—HREE 25,419 25,745
Recognised during the year FRER (651) (644)
Exchange realignment BE 5 AR 703 318
Carrying amount at 31 March R=ZA=+—HEKHE 25,471 25,419
Current portion included in prepayments, REBHBIEREMLE -
deposits and other receivables AR EMEWRRA (661) (646)
Non-current portion ERENIR1D 24,810 24,773

The above leasehold lands are all held under medium term

leases and are situated outside Hong Kong.

HEzHELT I UPHENRFERLR

BRI -
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16. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 16. EEIRE
Group
£E
2008 2007
—EENF —EELF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
At 1 April REOA—H 38,513 83,540
Additions wE 105,626 96,939
Transfer to property, plant B
and equipment (note 13) MEREE (M 13) (5,004) (148,058)
Foreign exchange adjustments HMEE A E 9,566 6,092
At 31 March R=A=+—8H 148,701 38,513
17. TRADEMARKS 17. &E
Group
£H

2008 2007
—EENEF —EELF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET

Cost and carrying amount: RARREE :
At 1 April REA—H 33,293 33,227
Additions wnE — 66
Cost and carrying amount at 31 March REZA=Z+—HAARKREE 33,293 33,293
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18. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 18. REZE LT z2RER
Group
£H
2008
—EENFE —EEt
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Share of net assets EhLEEFE 104,764 121,464
Particulars of the associate are as follows: BMENTZ2ERNOT :
Percentage
of ownership
Particulars Place of interest
of issued incorporation attributable
Name shares held and operations to the Group  Principal activity
BEE#T AR R AEBEEAS
£ BAHE R =0k EnEHRt FEEK
Megawell Industrial Ordinary shares Hong Kong/ 50 Manufacture

Limited

BEHBERAH

of HK$1 each

BEREBR

BT

Mainland China
and Vietnam
B8/ HEKE
X #irg

of garments

BRAEE
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INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 18. REtE AT 2R (&)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial TRHEIBEEEHBERLAMBRR
information of Megawell Industrial Limited extracted from 2 BERRE :

its financial statements:

2008 2007
—EENEF —ETLHF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Assets BE 521,765 449,046
Liabilities a& 288,904 238,020
Revenues A 1,220,994 1,036,465
Profit after tax MRFL &SRR 118,047 100,102
DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE 19. BNBELQT
The amount due to an associate is unsecured, interest-free ERBERARIXRDEERAR BFERE
and repayable on agreed credit terms. The carrying amount BRBFTIRAER - BNHME AR REEHE
of the amount due to the associate approximates to its fair HRARERSE -
value.
INVENTORIES 20. 78
Group
£
2008 2007
—BENF —BTLF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Raw materials R 888,479 694,681
Work in progress P 94,359 88,697
Finished goods By 604,237 506,962
1,587,075 1,290,340
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21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

21. EREFRRERERE

Group
&=

2008 2007
—EENE —ZTEHF
HK$'000 HK$°000
BETT B F T
Trade receivables FEURBR TR 560,759 617,075
Impairment BB (2,814) (3,108)
557,945 613,967
Bills receivable EREE 459,940 476,420
1,017,885 1,090,387

Payment terms of the Group’s customers mainly range from

“cash before delivery” to “within 90 days from the date of

invoice”. A significant portion of the customers trade with

the Group under documentary credit terms. The Group

seeks to maintain strict credit control on its outstanding

receivables and has a policy to manage its credit risk. Since

the Group’s trade receivables relate to a large number of

customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk.

Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

FEBEFIERPBIAREEIZIHEAR
MR HEBERBHRUEARETK
Z e AEBHEWHRER —EREERHE L
EERERR HRAEERUEREREBERSE
FrAUAEBEIBESANEEETER - B

RADIEME -
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TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 21. BEWERRREWRER #)
An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the balance REER RBZAHNREERZ ZEWR
sheet date, based on the invoice date and net of impairment, BEMERSTAOT :
is as follows:
Group
£8
2008 2007
—EENF —EELHF
HK$000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
Within 90 days 0HA 553,212 592,031
Over 90 days 90H M k£ 4,733 21,936
557,945 613,967

An aged analysis of the bills receivable, based on the invoice @R#&EH @B BEEZEAMZEREERRIMOT

date, as at the balance sheet date is as follows:

Group
3

2008 2007
—EENF —EELHF
HK$000 HK$°000
BYFR BT T
Within 90 days 0HR 452,320 445,012
Over 90 days 90H M £ 7,620 31,408
459,940 476,420
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21.

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

The movements in provision for impairment of trade

receivables are as follows:

21.

FEW BR K B W R B ()
YRR REEFZBNOT

Group
e

2008 2007

—EBN\F ZEELF

HK$’000 HK$'000

B F T B F T

At 1 April ROEOA—H 3,108 2,730
Impairment/(written-back of impairment) FEUWIRFURE, "

of trade receivables (note 6) CRERE#) (Mtit6) (294) 378

At 31 March R=RA=+—H 2,814 3,108

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
receivables is a provision for individually impaired trade
receivables of HK$2,814,000 (2007: HK$3,108,000) with a
carrying amount of HK$4,890,000 (2007: HK$5,963,000). The
individually impaired trade receivables relate to customers
that were in default or delinquency in payments and only a
portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered. The
Group does not hold any collateral or credit enhancements

over these balances.

ELRERRFRERGFEEHESNE
B (B FE WL BR SRR 5 B #52,814000 T (=&
T L B%3,1080007T) - %L FE R
M ARTE 54,890,000 T (Z B2 L F | B
5,963,0007T ) ° 7% L 8 Bl iRl 1B FE W iR 708
RTBARRRERNEF AHZSE
KRR EMHERE - AEBABERZSE
BEFEETAEFAIIHMBRACEAOR

& -



21.

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#&¥R3E KMzt

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)
The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not

considered to be impaired is as follows:

21.

31 March 2008 —EZENF=F=+—H

AR K EWRE (&)
BEREFTHEZBRUIRR 2 RED TN
T

Group
£8

2008 2007
ZEBENF —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$°000
B F T BT T
Neither past due nor impaired 3 I B E T R E R E 401,605 452,644
Within 90 days past due BEHIA R 154,259 157,870
Over 90 days past due HEI90H L £ 5 598
555,869 611,112

Bills receivable were neither past due nor impaired at the

balance sheet date.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a large number of diversified customers for whom there

was no history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to
a number of customers that have a good payment record
with the Group. Based on past experience, these customers
normally settle all the overdue amounts shortly after matters
related to their orders are resolved. Besides, a substantial
portion of these receivables are covered by documentary
credits, thus, the directors consider that no provision for
impairment for these receivables is necessary. Save as
aforesaid, the Group does not hold any collateral or other

credit enhancements over these balances.

REEH BRRBEYFEH  TEFE
@ o

YHEH  TEFTREZERBRRESR K
BEF MZEFEFLEFBITARER -

CEl BEFHEIERRFIRES A
FEBERHERCHZEFPAR - BB
AR ZEEPRITEBEERBRE
ERBERBANSEEBRE- I E
REBOHEKRFRBEZERARRE - Bt
EZRRETHRERWTRELREN
Ef o BREMI  NREBMUERZSHEER
ERERR  NEEREAD -
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22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 2. fTE€MIA
Group
&=
2008 2007
—EEN\EF —EELF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BETFT
Forward currency contracts: RHMESHN
Assets EE 62,335 25,588
Liabilities as 19,438 196

The carrying amounts of the forward currency contracts are EHMESNZREEEELAALBERR

the same as their fair values.

23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 23. ReRBRELEEY
Group Company
58 A"

2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENF —EELHF —EENE —EELHF
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BT BT BT BT T
Cash and bank balances BHERIRITER 228,667 165,523 63 154
Time deposits EHBF R 588,950 79,306 — —
817,617 244,829 63 154

Less: Time deposits with W RBAR

original maturity of =EANLE
longer than three E B2 EH
months when acquired FEE (496,086) — = —

Cash and cash equivalents RERBEELZEY 321,531 244,829 63 154




23.

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#&¥R3E KMzt

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

At the balance sheet date, the cash and bank balances
and the time deposits of the Group denominated in
Renminbi (“RMB"”) amounted to HK$172,087,000 (2007:
HK$125,038,000) and HK$573,350,000 (2007: HK$1,010,000),
respectively. RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct

foreign exchange business.

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
tenors less than or equal to one year depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest
at the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank
balances and time deposits are placed with creditworthy
banks. The carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents

approximate to their fair values.

Included in time deposits are structured deposits of
HK$496,086,000 (2007: Nil). The interest rate on these
deposits fluctuate based on changes in currency exchange
rate. The Group uses structured deposit primarily to enhance

the return on investment.

23.
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RERBEESED &)

REER  AEBEUARBHEEZRER
RITEE BRI E B 7 R B % 78 5 172,087,000
T(=ZZ £ 5 % %12503800 ) &
# #573350000 T( =BT L F: B
1,010,000T) - AR THERIBREME
WoOBMRBEPEARANENEE -
RNEEEBERE AEEEEEREERE
ETHEXEBZRTEARBRLGERHA

E¥ -

EE

RITFRREESHRTERFIZRNFAIL
EHERFER2FRAAE-FIUT R
FRAEBZHOKREFRME  WIRFE
HEMEFARFEZRBAE - RITEHRE
BERFREERFNRT RERRE
ZEMREEEAQNAERE -

BEREHREFRAEBEBHEEREBY
496,086,000 T (ZZ Tt HF : &) WEF
ReRERRERAnEMES SEER
EEMTHENAEMNREDR -
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24. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 24 BENERRREMRE
Group
£H
2008 2007
ZEENF —EELF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BEFR BT T
Trade payables FEATBR X 972,321 935,474
Bills payable B RE 21,540 15,444
993,861 950,918
An aged analysis of the trade payables as at balance sheet REER REZAHM2ESERRED
date, based on the invoice date, is as follows: T
Group
58
2008 2007
—EENEF —ETLHF
HK$°'000 HK$'000
B F T BT T
Within 90 days 0HA 970,452 905,975
Over 90 days 90H M £ 1,869 29,499
972,321 935,474
At the balance sheet date, the trade payables are non- REER BHIRRAIENER—KRAH0
interest-bearing and are normally settled on 90-day terms. AWES SEENEBEEHAREEA
The bills payable of the Group are aged within 90 days, HA90R A ©

based on the invoice date.
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25. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 25. HMEMNKRARREGFARE
Group Company
58 |
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENHF —EEtHF —EENF —EELHF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T B F T BEFT B F T
Other payables (note) H i ES BRI (B aE) 130,535 104,262 651 222
Accrued liabilities EitaE 233,017 144,009 1,653 549
363,552 248,271 2,304 771

Note: Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average

Kiat - BT ARH BEFE  BFHRE A=

term of three months. 1A °
26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 26. MIERITER
2008 2007
—EENE “ETtE
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
(%) Maturity HK$'000 (%) Maturity HK$'000
Group ERERE EREAE
(%) 388 BETT (%) A BETT
Current yiok )
Bank overdrafts — BTEX - - 7.75-8.00 On demand 2
unsecured EIK A REX
Trust receipt loans EXER - 423 Within 30 days 1,590
=t+HRA
Bank loans — unsecured $R{TE R - EiE T 1.24-4.73  within 1 year 434,781 2.23-479  Within 1 year 545,193
—5R —FR®
434,781 546,785
Non-current E i)
Bank loans — unsecured $B{TE R - E#EF 2.00-4.73 2009-2012 812,769 2.23-4.65 2008-2012 557,791
1,247,550 1,104,576
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26.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

B ISR M A

26. MERITER (&)

(continued)
2008 2007
—BENE ZETtE
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
(%) Maturity HKS'000 (%) Maturity HK$000
Company BERFRE ERER=
AT (%) = BETFT (%) 38R BYEFT
Current nE
Bank loans — unsecured $R{TER - EF T 229 within 1 year 56,667 — — —
—FR
Non-current FRE
Bank loans — unsecured $R{TER - EFHF 2.29 2009-2011 283,333 — — —
340,000 —
Group Company
58 AHE
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EINF g 3 “EINF “ETLE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
Analysed into: oh
Bank loans repayable: RITERERS
Within one year or on demand R-FRHEER 434,781 546,785 56,667 —
In the second year E-FE 374,231 298,638 113,333 —
In the third to fifth years, F-EERF BFEER
inclusive ME 438,538 259,153 170,000 —
1,247,550 1,104,576 340,000 —

As at 31 March 2008, the Group’s bank borrowings in Hong
Kong dollars and New Taiwanese dollars amounted to
HK$1,156,664,000 (2007: HK$1,026,321,000) and HK$90,886,000
(2007: HK$78,255,000), respectively. The carrying amounts of

the Group’s bank borrowings approximate to their fair values.

RIZEENF=ZA=+—H AEEZBE

R EaWRTE

Eh 2\
TA D

Bl 5 78 %5 1,156,664,000

T(ZZEZ L F ! % %1,026,321,000 7T )

R B #90886000 T( =T LF I BE

)%\l

8,2550007t) r AEBRITERZERAE

HARERSE -
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27. EFEBE

Depreciation allowance

in excess of related Revaluation of

Fair values of derivative

depreciation properties financial instruments Others Group
BURARAEER
NRERRR NEEMR fTESHIADAE At LS 3
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
ZEENE CETLE CBERNF CTELE CEENE CERLE ZBRNF CERLF CBENE CETLE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000 — HK$'000  HK$'000 — HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS000
BEFT  BEFT  BMTr EETn  BETn ENMTn BETn ERTn BEFR EETx
At beginning of year £ (121) (510) 1,886 1,886 - — 4,395 2,212 5,560 3,588
Deferred tax charge/(credit) &2 A FIBEH
to the income statement  EEHEEE/
during the year (note 9) (B (fif329) - (1) - - 11,000 - 54 2,183 11,054 1972
At 31 March R=B=1-A (1) (721) 1,886 1,886 11,000 — 4,449 4,395 16,614 5,560

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$507,446,000 (2007: HK$456,324,000) that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of
the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets
have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they
have arisen in subsidiaries of which no assessable profits are

expected to generate in the foreseeable future.

At 31 March 2008, there was no significant unrecognised
deferred tax liability (2007: Nil) for taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings of certain of the Group’s

subsidiaries and associate.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the

payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

AEEREBELEZBHEBFER B

#5507,446000 T( = T & £ F: B &
456,324,0007T)  ZLEELEBEFEMN QA

ERMEAZEERAFEHEAR ZER
Baf RN KEREELEBEERZW
BAARAREREDELERIBER
EERBEEVERZEHRETRER -

REZZBZENF=ZA=Z+—H REHLE
AAEENBRAARBERRA ZRETR
MEBERABAELEREER(
FE) -

—EE+t

— ==

AARMERRIKEZRE » WEBHE
AEBMTER2BRR -
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28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. A
Shares ® 5
2008 2007
—EENF —EELE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T B F T
Authorised: EE
2,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.05 each 2,000,000,000 %
in nominal value BREEER0.05T 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHE
1,327,132,104 (2007: 1,326,288,104) 1,327,132,104( =B Z £ F :
shares of HK$0.05 each in 1,326,288,104) IR B R H &
nominal value B H0.05 7T 66,356 66,314
A summary of the movements in the Company’s share capital AR RAEAREKERN 2SS EFMA T :
during the year is as follows:
Number of Issued share Share premium
shares in issue capital account Total
ERTROHE ERTRA R A% B iR ay
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
BEFT BEFT BYEFT
At 1 April 2006, NZEEXENA-—H
31 March 2007 ZRREEZRE-HR
and 1 April 2007 “ZZLEMA-A 1,326,288,104 66,314 344,158 410,472
Exercise of share options EREZTE 2,080,000 104 11,135 11,239
Transfer from share option reserve BREREEA — — 2,085 2,085
Repurchase of shares [ 5 R 17 (1,236,000) (62) (6,780) (6,842)
At 31 March 2008 —ZE\E=ZA=1+-H 1,327,132,104 66,356 350,598 416,954
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SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

The subscription rights attaching to 650,000 share
options and 1,430,000 share options were exercised at
the subscription price of HK$4.97 per share and HK$5.60
per share (note 29), respectively, resulting in the issue of
2,080,000 shares of HK$0.05 each in nominal value for a total

cash consideration of HK$11,239,000.

During the year, the Company repurchased 1,236,000 of
its ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each in nominal value from
the market at a total consideration of approximately
HK$6,842,000. These repurchased ordinary shares were
subsequently cancelled by the Company and the share
premium of HK$6,780,000 has been debited to the share
premium account of the Company. In addition, the Company
also transferred HK$62,000, which equivalent to the nominal
value of these repurchased shares, from retained profits to
the capital redemption reserve as set out in note 30(b) to the

financial statements.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date and up to the date
of these financial statements, the Company’s issued share
capital decreased to 1,326,868,104 ordinary shares as a result

of:

(1) the repurchase and cancel by the Company of 704,000
of its ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each in nominal
value from the market at a total consideration of

approximately HK$3,818,000; and

(2) the exercise of 440,000 share options by some

employees of the Company (note 29).

Share options
Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share
options issued under the scheme are included in note 29 to

the financial statements.

28.
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R ()

650,000 13 % 1,430,000 13 Ffi /5 32 &% #& = 88 IR
EDBIASRBEAIT TR BES0T 2R
BB E R 1T (KM 5E29) » A 1t 2,080,000 A%
BREEBBIGCTZEBRIAARESNRE
#) 78 %511,239,000 7T T LA B 1T ©

RAFR 228 LA E L 16,842,000
TRTEEEESREEBH0GTZES
A% 1,236,000 - H#% > AATEBEEE B
LB - B %6,780,000 7T B 1t IR 1% B IR
RHIER o BESh - AR B R R R E B
#6200t ZRAEEf#E - HENEDEB
ROZEHE FEERRNIBEREME
30(b) °

1
TRZAE 4 £1,326,868,104 )R & @ IR » &

() A2FHRTEARELE 3,818,000
TEERBUEESREEB 005
2 & @R 704,000 ; &

(2) A2 7F—L{E & 17£440,00015 i IR A
(Bff5E29) o

BRE
AABRzEREFTERBEZTERTZ
BREZFAENCHNPBRRMFT29
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29.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme"”), in compliance with the requirements of Chapter
17 of the Listing Rules, for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group's operations. Eligible
participants of the Scheme include the Company’s directors
(including independent non-executive directors), and other
employees of the Group. The Scheme became effective on 28
August 2002 and will remain in force for ten years from that

date.

The maximum number of share options permitted to be
granted under the Scheme was an amount equivalent, upon
their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time. The maximum number of shares issuable to
each eligible participant in the Scheme within any 12-month
period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of
this limit is subject to shareholders' approval in a general

meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the price of the Company’s shares at the date of
the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month
period, are subject to shareholders' approval in advance in a

general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of the offer upon payment of
a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The
exercise period of the share options granted is determinable
by the directors but is not more than 10 years from the date

of grant.

29.

BRESE
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tEERNBRESE(ZHE])) £
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ZEEAAFZBRSARTZBRESANAS
RADAEMERB210%E #TRM - R
FA+-EANBARBZFEATEAESR
BERZHEALBRITZROBE  BZT
BRAFMEEzZARATNEBTRN1% -
FRE-—TREBBZRBEZBRELA
ERRABRRASHE -

MEE  ESHALERTERR IFTSE
EMBHBEATREBRESERS I EH
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 29.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the
Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the
date of the offer of the share options; (ii) the average Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of offer; and

(iii) the nominal value of a share.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to

dividends or to vote at shareholders' meetings.

31 March 2008 —EZENF=F=+—H

B REST &l ()
BRECRBEMESER  ETEER
AT 28EE (AR ARDRBERBER
BAMEBRR WD E  ()A2FRG
REZBRAMAABARS B EBRAZ
FWHE  RGi)RGREE

BREXYEBRTHEAEZARSENERNR
RERENBRENEFR -

The following share options were outstanding under the REER > RITEZBRENT :
Scheme at the balance sheet date:
2008 2007
—BRENF i 3
Weighted Weighted
average exercise Number of  average exercise Number of
price share options price share options
Mg T
TRER BREHE TRER BREHA
HKS ‘000 HK$ ‘000
per share per share
BRERT F SRE¥T F
At 1 April REA-H 5.28 50,850 5.28 51,140
Forfeited during the year FREHH — — 5.51 (290)
Exercised during the year FRETHE 5.40 (2,080) — -
At 31 March R=B=+-H 5.28 48,770 5.28 50,850

The weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares
immediately before and at the exercise dates of the share

options was HK$6.34 and HK$6.28, respectively.

REZERETEIHAIRRITEDNHAR
AR MEFEHUTED B BB TRE

#2628 7T ©
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 29. BRAERTE (#)
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options REER RITEBREZTEEERRT
outstanding as at that balance sheet date are as follows: EHRRMT -

Number of share options

BREHE
Exercise price of
share options*  Exercise period of share options 2008 2007
BRETEER BRETEHR —EENEF —EEtF
HK$ per share ‘000 ‘000
FREBHE T F F
4.97 11 September 2002 to 10 September 2012 25,000 25,650
—EE-FRAT+-—BE=ZZE—-FhA+H
5.60 26 March 2004 to 25 March 2014 18,600 18,600
—EZNE=A=+XAE-ZE-WE=A=+EHA
5.60 1 April 2006 to 25 March 2014 5,170 6,600
—EEXRFENA-—HEZZE—WNFE=A=+EHH
48,770 50,850
i The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment * FEREZ /TR EIE A 12 (R IR AL IR TR 3
in case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the SR ML 2 2 FRAFE B T B AR

Company'’s share capital.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The 2,080,000 share options exercised during the year
resulted in the issue of 2,080,000 ordinary shares of the
Company and new share capital of HK$104,000 and share
premium of HK$11,135,000, as further detailed in note 28 to

the financial statements.

Last year, 290,000 share options were forfeited upon
resignation of employees resulting in a reduction of share
option reserve which was transferred to retained profits of

HK$435,000.

At 31 March 2008, the Company had 48,770,000 share
options outstanding under the Scheme. The exercise in full
of the outstanding share options would, under the present
capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of
48,770,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company and
additional share capital of HK$2,438,500 and share premium

of HK$254,923,500.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, a total of 440,000
shares options were exercised by some employees resulted
in the issue of 440,000 ordinary shares of the Company
with new share capital of HK$22,000 and share premium of

HK$2,442,000.

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 48,330,000 share options outstanding under
the Scheme, which represented approximately 3.6% of the

Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

29.
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BIRAES & (#®)

REA » 2,080,00017 i R R ITE » BEA
A B 8 47 & 18§ 2,080,000 A% 0 K 140 H A%
7 %5 104,000 7T R BR 2532 18 75 %5 11,135,000
T HBER BRI RM T8

REF XL{ESBEB - 2900007 8 K
ECHEBE SIBERERERDBE
435,0007C @ WERZRBHEF o

RZZBENF=ZA=Z+—H > ADAHEZ
5t 2T 15 548,770,000 17 48 IR e R AT ©
BEAAAZREEARBE 2HITE
BT 2 BB IR 1B 18 B 23R S 3% 17 48,770,000
RAEALABzEBR  WREIEERKTBYE
2,438,500 7T J AR 17 % & 7 # 254,923,500 7T °

#EE A% —L{ES1TF H440,000 1 B AR
> BEARDGF
1200 #7 BR 7S 78 15 22,000 T M IR A5 B B

2,442,0007T °

p
1
ES

17 % 38 IR 440,000 1% © &

REBEBR2ZER » RABEZFNET
14 /548,330,000 17 B IR EAREITE - HER
ZAARQNTEBITRMDA3.6% °
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30. RESERVES

(a)

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in

equity of the financial statements.

The Group’s contributed surplus represents the
difference between the nominal value of the issued
share capital of the Company and the then nominal
value of the issued share capital of the subsidiaries
acquired at the date of acquisition, as a result of the
reorganisation which occurred before the listing of the

Company’s shares in 1992.

As further detailed in note 2.4 to the financial
statements, the Group applied the transitional
provisions of HKFRS 3 that permitted goodwill in
respect of business combinations which occurred prior
to 2001, to remain eliminated against consolidated
retained profits. The amounts of goodwill remaining
in consolidated retained profits, arising from the
acquisitions of an associate prior to the adoption of
SSAP 30 in 2001, was HK$110,648,000 as at 31 March

2007 and 31 March 2008.

In accordance with the Macau Commercial Codes, Nice
Dyeing Factory (Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, whose
principal operation is conducted in Macau, is required
to appropriate annually not less than 25% of its profit
after tax to a legal reserve, until the balance of the

reserve reaches 50% of the entity’s capital fund.

30.

R
(a)

&8
FEERAMFEFREARBERABZ
SHEINUBRERNGERELD
RA e

AEARBE-NWAZFLETANE
B AEBCERBRRAEAQACEH
1T IR 7S i T B B T L2 B8 B 6 22 ) A R
BABCZERTRAEEZIERE -

HERPBHRERME24 AKEE
SIREBMBMELENEINBIEM
BX - AHFR-ZZ-FABRENE
BEMEENEERERGEREE
s - R=ZE-FRMNSHEHR
ZRIFE305%A 0 B —BEDQF
EENEE  DEBRGEREEA
OHEER-EELEF=ZRA=1—
BR-ZENF=ZA=T—HABE

110,648,000 7T °

RBRPIEER  XQAA -2 EHA
MEAE - KERKCRMBFRX
BR#)ERLA  HREEEERREM
BT FEEIRETDN25%HER
BREREEERE  BEEZRER
BEZTZARELREH50% °
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30. RESERVES (continued) 30. & (#)
Company (b) 27
Share Share Capital
premium option redemption Contributed Retained
account reserve reserve surplus profits Total
K&
RARER BRERE BRORE HHER  REEA BE
Notes HK$000 HKS$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
Wz EEFr EEFr BETn BETn BETn BETx
At 1 April 2006 R-EEXENA-A 344,158 10,276 1,587 48,708 380,452 785,181
Forfeiture of share options ~ BUNERE 29 — (435) - - 435 —
Profit for the year REERA — — — — 759,075 759,075
2006/2007 BT /CBRLER
interim dividend RERE - — — — (159,155 (159,155)
200612007 proposed final ~ ZEEXN/ZBELEE
dividend RRRBRE - — - - (198,913) (198,913)
At 31 March 2007 and R-ZZ+F=A=t-H
1 April 2007 RZEEtEMA-H 344,158 9,841 1,587 48,708 781,894 1,186,188
Exercise of share options TRERE 13,220 (2,085) — — - 11,135
Repurchase of shares EERG 28 (6,780) — 62 — (62) (6,780)
Profit for the year KEERT — — — — 574,182 574,182
2007/2008 BBt/ -BENEE
interim dividend PERE - - - — (239132 (239,132
2007/2008 proposed final “BZ+/-BEN\EE
dividend RRRBRE = = = - (331,750) (331,750)
At 31 March 2008 RZBENEZA=1-H 350,598 7,756 1,649 48,708 785,132 1,193,843

The Company’s contributed surplus represents the

difference between the nominal value of the issued

share capital of the Company and the then combined

net assets of the subsidiaries acquired on the date of

acquisition, as a result of the reorganisation which

occurred before the listing of the Company’s shares

in 1992. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda

(as amended), a distribution may be made out of the

contributed surplus under certain circumstances.

HEARBDE-NAZFLETANE
B ARAZERBRRBEAQACEH
1T IR 7S iz T B B T WKL BB B /B8 28 R A R
BRHCAHEEFEZZH - RER
RE-NAN-—F28E(BER - 7

RETHERATRBREHMRE -
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31.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

B ISR M A

31, RMB AR 2R

Company
AT

2008 2007

—EEN\F —ETtHF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Unlisted shares, at cost LR A 48,908 48,908
Due from subsidiaries FE U i B 2 ) BR R 1,645,893 2,443,553
Due to subsidiaries FEAS B B A B BR X (95,823) (1,240,632)
1,598,978 1,251,829

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free
and not repayable within one year. The carrying amounts
of the balances with subsidiaries approximate to their fair

values.

BB AR RREE DEER  EINERE
AR—FAEE - ZHENB LR 2 RRAERNVER
EEEHEQNAERSE -
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 31.

All subsidiaries, other than Trustland Inc., are indirectly held

by the Company. Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are

31 March 2008 —EZENF=F=+—H

RHME LR ZER #)
FrTrustland Inc.fh > FTEM B QA AEHAR D
AREEE  TEMBLATFBENOT ¢

as follows:
Place of Nominal value Percentage
incorporation/ of issued of equity
registration ordinary/registered attributable to
Name and operations share capital the Company Principal activities
MR, CRITZER A E) PEAG R
H518 BRREEMLE EEERAEE ZEDER FTEXER
2008 2007
Trustland Inc. * British Virgin Islands/  US$18,000 100 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong
REELZHEE BB 18000E T REZR
Nice Dyeing Factory Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 100 100 Sale of finished
non-voting deferred knitted fabric
HK$3,125,000 and dyed yarn
KERBERA A O R R A B 151,000 7T HEHBTREY
7B 3,125,000 T
Texwinca Enterprises British Virgin Islands/  US$1 100 100 Investment holding
(China) Limited* Mainland China
BRE(PEDBRAERLA* HEBELZES 127 REZR
HhE R BE
Dongguan Texwinca People’s Republic of HK$2,271,644,503 100 100  Production of

Textile & Garment Limited* China (“PRC")/
Mainland China

REBKEHARK HEARAME ¥ 2,271,644,503 T
BRAR* (TRE D /Bl KR

Texwinca Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$2

BKEBEBRLA BB BHE2T

finished knitted
fabric and dyed yarn
EEREHBAREYD

100 100  Provision of
management services

REEERY
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31. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 31. RB AR 2 4#)
Place of Nominal value Percentage
incorporation/ of issued of equity

registration

ordinary/registered

attributable to

Name and operations share capital the Company Principal activities
ML CRITLEBER D E EAL R R
58 BREREEME EEERAEE ZEDE FTEEK
2008 2007
Win Ready Industrial Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10 100 100  Property holding
non-voting
deferred HK$2
KEEXERAF &8 ZERABEIOT EEXCEYES
ERFEELRA
B2

Winlife Trading Limited Hong Kong HK$15,903,100 100 100  Property holding

KETHERRE =i 7 %5 15,903,100 7T BFEME

Baleno Holdings Limited* British Virgin Islands ~ US$10,000 54 54  Investment holding

BEREBMERAA* KBELEES 10,000 % 7T REER

Baleno Kingdom Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 54 54  Retail and distribution

of casual apparel and
accessory

PRBEERAT b 7% 10,000 7T ERRHGN2EERDH

Guangzhou Friendship PRC/Mainland China HK$48,800,000 54 54  Retail and distribution
Baleno Company of casual apparel and
Limited* accessory

[& N & FE YL JE BE R & HE P E KR 78 48,800,000 7T ERRHNZTER D H
BRDF*

Shanghai Haiwen PRC/Mainland China US$210,000 51.4 51.4 Retail and distribution
Baleno Garment of casual apparel and
Company Limited* accessory

g SC B e B AR HE P E KR 210,000 3% 7T ERRHN2TERDH

BRAT*
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of
incorporation/

registration

31.

Nominal value
of issued

ordinary/registered

Percentage
of equity
attributable to

RHEB AR 2z (&)

Name and operations share capital the Company Principal activities
MR, CRITZER D E AL RS
H518 BREREXEME EEERAEE ZEDER FTEEK
2008 2007
Beijing Xingyu Baleno PRC/Mainland China US$500,000 54 54  Retail and distribution
Garment & Decoration of casual apparel and
Company Limited* accessory
b 5 3R fe B AR 2 hE P E KR 500,000 % 7T 12 B 2 8 4
BR &0 & PR 2 &) * ZEERDH
Chongging Dasheng PRC/Mainland China HK$3,880,000 54 54  Retail and distribution
Baleno Fashion of casual apparel and
Company Limited* accessory
EEREWEHERE FEL KR 7 53,880,000 T 12 AR 2 8 40
BRQF* ZEERDH
KETMMCKRIREHERAT*  PRC/Mainland China  RMB500,000 54 54  Retail and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessory
TP EKE A R # 500,0007T ER K &4
ZEERDH
Silver Kingdom Limited* British Virgin Islands/  US$1 54 54  Retail and distribution
Taiwan of casual apparel and
accessory
RERB IR D E* RERLES A8 1%7T AR &Y
ZEERDH
Bigpoint Limited* British Virgin Islands/  US$1 100 100 Holding of
Mainland China trademarks and
provision of
franchise services
RBEBRAR* RBRLES 1%7T FERERREM
LCTPNES BREERY
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31.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of
incorporation/

registration

31.

Nominal value
of issued

ordinary/registered

RHEB AR 2 (&)

Percentage

of equity

attributable to

Name and operations share capital the Company Principal activities
ML CRITLEBER D E EAL R R
58 BREREEME EEERAEE ZEDE FTEEK
2008 2007
Highrich Corporation* British Virgin Islands/  US$1 54 54  Provision of
Mainland China management services
and sub-licensing of
trademarks
REBRAT* EBELES/ 127 RUEERY
HhE KB R AR 72 R B8 R 7%
Winca Trading Limited British Virgin Islands/  US$1 100 100  Provision of repair
Mainland China and maintenance
services for
generators
KEEZERAF HERLESS 1%7T RUBBEEEBER
LETPNES RERE
Winca (Dongguan) Motor PRC/Mainland China HK$28,460,000 100 100  Provision of repair
Service Limited* and maintenance
services for motors
KfE(RR) REEE H Bl K RE 78 1 28,460,000 7T RYHFEZHEER
BRI B R D H* RERB
Successful Channel British Virgin Islands/  US$1 54 54  Property holding
Corporation* Mainland China
REELEE PEKE1ET BEWE
Billion Global Limited* British Virgin Islands/  US$1 54 54  Retail and distribution
Taiwan of casual apparel
and accessory
RERDARDT* EBRELFE AE 1EX R R 8640
ZEERDH
FERILERRE AR R PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB1,010,000 54 54  Retail and distribution

TE P E KR

A R #1,010,000 7T

of casual apparel and
accessory

ER R 840
ZEERDH
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of
incorporation/

registration

31.

Nominal value
of issued

ordinary/registered

Percentage
of equity
attributable to

RHEB AR 2z (&)

Name and operations share capital the Company Principal activities
MR, CRITZER D E AL RS
H518 BREREXEME EEERAEE ZEDER FTEEK
2008 2007
RENECKRBERTRAA PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB1,080,000 54 54  Retail and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessory
hE P E KR A B #1,080,000 7T 12 B 2 8 490
ZEERDH
ROVCHKREAER A H* PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB500,000 54 54  Retail and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessory
FEL KR A R #500,000 7 12 B 2 8 40
ZEERDH
PR IEfE 5% AREF B PR A * PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB600,000 54 54  Retail and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessory
HE P E KR A R #600,000 7T 12 AR 2 8 4
ZEERDH
Baleno Kingdom Singapore $G$2,000,000 54 54  Retail and distribution
(Singapore) Private of casual apparel and
Limited accessory
g 3% 2,000,000 7T ERK &
ZEERDH
Excel Billion Inc.* British Virgin Islands/  US$1 54 54  Property holding
Taiwan
KEEBAERDE* EBRLEEAE 1ER FEME
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31.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of
incorporation/

registration

31.

Nominal value
of issued

ordinary/registered

KRB AR 2z (&)

Percentage
of equity
attributable to

Name and operations share capital the Company Principal activities
ML CRITLEBER D E EAL R R
58 BREREEME EEERAEE ZEDE FTEEK
2008 2007
REVEIRIRENE R A F PRC/Mainland China  HK$2,100,000 54 54  Retail and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessory
HE P E KR 352,100,000 7T 12 B 2 8 490
ZEERDH
Nice Dyeing Factory Macau MOP100,000 100 100  Procurement of raw
(Macao Commercial materials and sale of
Offshore) Limited* finished knitted
fabric and dyed yarn
KERR CRPIB R ERE) B’ JELPT #5 100,000 7T BRI EM B R
BRQA* HEHBAIREY
Baleno (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd Malaysia MYR600,000 54 54  Retail and distribution
of casual apparel
and accessory
ERAD £5 600,000 E IR & &4
ZEERDH
* Not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or other member * FHALZKEFMERE B A M 2K

firms of the Ernst & Young global network.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,

in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the

results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the

net assets of the Group. To give details of all subsidiaries

would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of

excessive length.

BT EBERASEFEX

LREFHAQARAZETEMBAR &S
ARBREHAEHZEEBREIRLEY

HRAEEFEECTERND - EER

A Ay

HIFENBLARAESREARTIR
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32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 32. IFAE
(a) At the balance sheet date, contingent liabilities not (a) MEER UTHEEBRREER
provided for in the financial statements were as B
follows:
Group Company
%8 QAT
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EEN\F “EERLF —BE2NF —EERLF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET

Bank guarantees given in lieu of KEZBBYERS
property rental deposits ZRITER 3,280 4,823 — —
Guarantees of banking facilities &% A B4R 1T

granted to an associate EERMEZER 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500

Guarantees of banking facilities %82 B4R 1T

granted to subsidiaries EEMEZER — — 4,594,050 3,925,050
As at 31 March 2008, the banking facilities granted to BE-_ZENFE=ZRA=+—-8"
an associate and subsidiaries with guarantees given to BERXNARMBELARAHAARRQF
the banks by the Company were utilised to the extent of EHEERZBITEESNNABE
approximately HK$7,000,000 (2007: Nil) and were utilised 7,000,000 T (ZEZFLF | &) KB
to the extent of approximately HK$1,247,550,000 (2007: 1,247550000 T (ZZ=Zt & | B
HK$1,104,576,000), respectively. 1,104,576,000 75 ) ©
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32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(b)

(@]

A subsidiary of the Group in Taiwan is currently subject
to a claim from the National Tax Authority (the “NTA")
of Taiwan for the underpayment of business tax on
sales made through certain local stores in Taiwan
during the period from November 1998 to December
2002 together with penalties, of NTD50,219,000
in aggregate (equivalent to HK$12,857,000). An
amendment letter against the claims was filed by the
local tax representative of the subsidiary in a prior
year. The directors, based on the advice from the local
tax representative of the subsidiary, consider that the
subsidiary has a valid ground to object the claims from
the NTA, and accordingly, the Group has not made any
provision for the tax claim as at 31 March 2008 (2007:
Nil).

During the year ended 31 March 2007, the Hong Kong
Inland Revenue Department (the “IRD") initiated a review
on the tax affairs for the past years of certain subsidiaries
of the Group. In March 2007, protective tax assessments
totalling HK$322,038,000 for the year of assessment
2000/2001 have been issued by the IRD. In March 2008,
protective tax assessments totalling HK$224,000,000 for
the year of assessment 2001/2002 have been issued by the
IRD. Objections have been raised by the Group against
the protective tax assessments. The directors of the
subsidiaries believe that there are valid grounds to object
the tax claimed. Subsequent to the objections, the IRD
agreed to hold over the tax claimed completely subject to
the purchase of tax reserve certificates of HK$40,000,000
and HK$35,000,000 for the years of assessment 2000/2001
and 2001/2002, respectively. In view that the tax review is
only at the initial stage, there are still certain uncertainty
about the outcome of the case. Up to the date of
approval of these financial statements, the directors of
the subsidiaries consider that adequate tax provision has

been made in the financial statements.

32. REEE#H)

(b)

()

FEERAEZ-HWBATZIAE
EHS(EREDEREEAERI
HEMEHER-—NANET—-AZE=
TEET_AHBHEECOEE
Bl 1K 0 4288 T & #50,219,000
Tt (HH & R B %12,857,000 T ) ° R E
FoZWNBARZEMBIKRARE 2
FERFARELES - REHWEL
AEMBEBNRZER  EEHER
MEAREZNERRYEEARBZE
#o ARAEEAULEER_ZTZEN=
A=+ - BAUBBERELERE
(ZZZLHF  |)

R-ZBZLF=ZA=+—HLEFE"
EEBRBR (BB aAEEIH
MEBARRERATEERBMRRE
TEZ -R=—ZZTLtHE=A BREE
Fo-TEE —ET-RBFEHR
o AR R M B 75 AT 4 3L 8 15322,038,000
T RZZZENE=ZR BHBEHR=-Z
- /CERECRNEFERHREMY
i 3% 57 4 £ 78 %5 224,000,000 7T © AN
BEHEEEXHEERETNHRAREL
Ré o REAEERHEREEZ  BEE
EEEMEMNEBHN LA
Z2E/EE-R=-TT— /=
“HRUBEESANBERKNS S
%8 7% 140,000,000 7T & 3 # 35,000,000
cHRNBMERBERER ALt -
EHENERDELETEE - EEARE
BHEMZA > BEEAMBLARESR
AUBHBRPZREREC RS -
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33. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 33. REHERHE
(a) As lessor (@ fEAHBEA
The Group leases its investment properties (note 14) AEERBEEHETHEHAEAETR
under operating lease arrangements, with leases BEYE (Ma14) R HEMEE=
negotiated for terms ranging from two to three EXrZE -HIKFT—REECHEPEM
years. The terms of the leases generally also require FREBRESLIEAUREERTES
the tenants to pay security deposits and provide MEHBELHESHE -

for periodic rent adjustments according to the then

prevailing market conditions.

At 31 March 2008, the Group had total future minimum R-ZZBEEN=ZA=+—0 ' XEER
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating BEREAUREKCERESH KR
leases with its tenants falling due as follows: EEREWRESEAEINHEINT :
Group
%H
2008 2007
—EENF ZETEHF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within one year R—FR 11,913 9,395
In the second to fifth years, E-FEEZEEREF
inclusive (BRERME) 27,311 25,592
After five years REFE% — 6,550
39,224 41,537
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33. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued) 33. KEdEERH@
(b) As lessee (b) HEHEBEA
The Group leases certain of its land for factories, retail AEEREBELEHERHFERE
stores, plant and machinery, and staff and directors’ FTrAEIR ZEFEE BRER
quarters under operating lease arrangements. Such i - BIRESES - ZZHY=R
leases are negotiated for terms of not more than 50 BT RBATEF -
years.
At 31 March 2008, the Group had total future minimum R-ZZEZENF=ZA=+—H &5H
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases BRIEEBEZTAHECEHESNR
falling due as follows: ReEEMFHSAREIBBIROT
Group
£H
2008 2007
—BENEF —EEtLE
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within one year R—FR 462,454 537,769
In the second to fifth years, FFEERF
inclusive (BEERWE) 619,175 800,197
After five years RAF%E 663,589 756,857
1,745,218 2,094,823
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33. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

As lessee (continued)

The operating lease rentals of certain retail shops are
based on the higher of a fixed rental or contingent
rent based on the sales of the retail shops pursuant to
the terms and conditions as set out in the respective
rental agreements. As the future sales of these retail

shops could not be estimated reliably, the relevant

31 March 2008 —EZENF=F=+—H

33. KEMHERH @A)

(b) EHEBEA(E)
ETEHKERVESDREER
THERBEBEYFE 2 RARAMRMSE
EEHEEEMEBEE cIRAEEWME
T2RBEMFELE - HREEERMGE
BHEBEHARZHEER  MERKE
AHBERIAREEMARA T ARERS A

contingent rent has not been included above and only &

the minimum lease commitment has been included in

the above table.

At the balance sheet date, the Company had no REER  ARRUEKLEHEZH

commitments under operating lease arrangements RE(ZEZLF &|) o

(2007: Nil).
34. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 34, BEAXRMEILE
AEEREE BB U T EAM X HAE

The commitments for capital expenditure of the Group at the

balance sheet date were as follows:

Group
£8
2008 2007
—EENE  —ETtEH
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
In respect of property, plant and equipment, Y% - BEREE
contracted, but not provided for 2T NERERE 35,928 32,624
In respect of property, plant and equipment, BY% - BERSEE
authorised, but not contracted for EZEBRRETN 330,331 330,331
In respect of investment in a subsidiary MIRER—HE DR 43,005 439,360
409,264 802,315

At the balance sheet date, the Company had no capital REEH  AQRUBRERMEERE(ZEE
commitments (2007: Nil). tHFEHE) o
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

35. BEALXRZ

During the year, the Group had the following related (@ RER FAEEBETUTEEAL
party transactions: X5
Group
£m
2008 2007
—EENE —EELHF
Notes HK$’000 HK$000
Bt &t FET FET
Sales to Megawell Industrial Limited  $4& F@E4HE8HER
("Megawell”) AT (D) 463,330 317,820
Purchases from Megawell EEERE (ii) 240,684 179,406
Rental expenses paid to related HEBRINAF
companies BE QT (iii) 16,190 10,466
Notes: Bfat -
0] The sales to Megawell, an associate of the Group, were (i) KEBFEEE (FEBHBEE L)
made according to the prices and conditions offered to ZHEDREFAEBOEERF 12
the major customers of the Group. R BERIFHETL o
(ii) The directors considered that the purchases from (ii) EERBOEERBEZERR;KF
Megawell were made according to the prices and o BEEOEFEFAMBZER
conditions similar to those offered to other customers of RIGHEE -
Megawell.
(i)  The rental expenses were paid to related companies, (i) HLERAEZIFEHELGESLS

of which certain directors of the Company are also the
directors and beneficial shareholders, for the provision
of directors’ quarters and retail outlets for certain
subsidiaries. The directors considered that the monthly
rentals were charged based on the prevailing market
rates at the dates of the tenancy agreements. The rental
expenses of the directors’ quarters were included in
the directors’ remuneration as detailed in note 7 to the

financial statements.

BB LrANEEEEREEF
T ZERRAZEEREHZKRRIT
BARAZEE -BEERZAFAZ
M DREHEESE#ZFTAHZ TS
B - HHZEEESHLEAE
BEREFHE  WFHIREFH
xHET7
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

(b)

During the year, the Group had the following related

party transactions: (continued)

In addition, the Company and the Group have provided
certain guarantees for banking facilities granted to
Megawell, as detailed in note 32(a) to the financial

statements.

As at 31 March 2008, Nice Dyeing Factory Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has provided
advances of HK$1,823,000 (2007: HK$47,114,000)
to Baleno Kingdom Limited, a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary, at HIBOR plus 2% (2007: HIBOR plus 2%) per

annum.

In addition, as at 31 March 2008, Nice Dyeing Factory
(Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, has provided advances
of HK$411,831,000 (2007: HK$485,367,000) to Baleno
Holdings Limited, a non-wholly-owned subsidiary, at
83% of HIBOR plus 2% (2007: 83% of HIBOR plus 2%)

per annum.

The principal purpose of these advances is to finance
the operations of Baleno Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries. The advances are unsecured and have no

fixed terms of repayment.

35. BEAXTRF (#)

(a)

(b)

RERN AEBBETUTHEEAL

Re : (#)

o RATRAEBBEEFELE
FTROGEER  FHREREARNYE
HRMEE32() ©

R=ZBENF=ZA=+—H8 " &2
AZ2EREMBELARKERERE
RARMAOARNRZHLTERETHWE
RANERERAARMZERS
BEE1823000T (=BT LF : B
47,114,0007T) » FREHBEEBRITE
EIFEM2% - (Z2Z L HBRT
BEFEM2%) ©

o R=ZEENF=A=+—8"
KRAREEEEME QA KERE
(EMBEEEERK) ERAT @A
NEFEEREEMBLARNCKER
BIRD AR M E FB 411,831,000 7T
(ZZZ+F : B%485367,0007T)
FRNERBBEBRITEEFEMN2%M
BN(ZEZTLF : |RITEXEF LM
2% #183%) °

ZEERTERFHERERFRL
AREMBARZEEES - LA
RYEIKPREHEEREL -
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c)

(d)

A minority shareholder of the Group’s 54%-owned
subsidiary had provided an unconditional guarantee
to indemnify the Group from any loss arising from the
recoverability of prepayments made to a supplier of
the Group of HK$26,521,000 (2007: HK$25,143,000) as
included in the balance of the prepayments, deposits
and other receivables of the Group as at the balance

sheet date.

Compensation of key management personnel of the

35. BEALRG (&)

(0 AEEEBA%ERMBEBARZESR
—SHRERAEEEN —HERE
B HE26,521,000T (ZFFLF 1 8
25,143,000 7T ) #E R A EETAE
EElkEzBL REER  ZRE
BERENRE - TR EMBERE
FREEERT ©

d) AEETZEEBASHH:

Group:

2008 2007
—EENF —EELHF
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FER
Short term employee benefits HHEEREA 109,662 72,992
Post-employment benefits BB ZER 60 60

Total compensation paid to key TEEBEAEH M
management personnel FER 109,722 73,052

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in

note 7 to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed under “Details of non-exempt continuing

connected transactions” of the Report of the Directors, the

related party transactions in respect of items (a)(iii) above

constitute continuing connected transactions which are

exempted from the independent shareholders approval

requirement as defined in Rule 14A.65(4) of the Listing Rules.

EEHEHRENMBRRMET -

BREBERESEBRETTERENEER
ZHEEI . EMEE AR5 P E(a)iii)
BARETRAEUVASOHRRELRR
REBYRRYENSEBERS -
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments as at the balance sheet date are as follows:

Group

Financial assets

3. RERAIMNEMTA
REHR SRESNSWESRIARA
EmT

£

TREE

Financial assets
at fair value
through

profit or loss

— held for Loans and
2008 trading receivables Total
UAREEFE
BEESBFA
EHERMN
SREE
—EBENF —BEEE EXRRERFE &&t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT T B FT
Trade and bills receivables FEWRETREEKREE —_ 1,017,885 1,017,885
Financial assets included BEREMNRE -
in prepayments, deposits and ARk EMERKRRA
other receivables ZEMEE — 252,690 252,690
Derivative financial assets TTEERMEE 62,335 — 62,335
Cash and cash equivalents HEREESEEBY — 817,617 817,617
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 36. ZENESINERMIA @)

154

(continued)
Group £
Financial liabilities sEE s
Financial
liabilities

at fair value

through profit

or loss Financial
— held of liabilities at
2008 trading  amortised cost Total
UAREEFE
BEESBFA
EHERMN
cHAE 23 12928
—EBENF —REEE AERNERES &st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT T BT T
Due to an associate FENEENT —_ 20,141 20,141
Trade and bills payables EAERARREMNZE — 993,861 993,861
Financial liabilities included BEMEMEMSER
in other payables and REGTEERAZ
accrued liabilities ot S= — 130,535 130,535
Interest-bearing bank borrowings Kf 2 $R1T &K — 1,247,550 1,247,550
Derivative financial liabilities TTEEmas 19,438 — 19,438
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

36. EEEINWEMI AR (&)

(continued)
Group £
Financial assets EEEE
Financial

assets at fair
value through

profit or loss

— held for Loans and
2007 trading receivables Total
URREEFTE
BHZETA
EHMBEN
TREE
—EELF —RBEEE EXRRERFE &5t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T
Trade and bills receivables FEWRETREEKREE L 1,090,387 1,090,387
Financial assets included in BEREMNRE -
prepayments, deposits and ek HEMERKRIRA
other receivables ZERMEE — 286,804 286,804
Derivative financial assets TTEERMEE 25,588 — 25,588
Cash and cash equivalents HEREETZEEBY — 244,829 244,829
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 36. ZENESINERMIA @)

156

(continued)
Group £
Financial liabilities sEE s
Financial

liabilities at fair

value through

profit or loss Financial
— held for liabilities at
2007 trading  amortised cost Total
URREETE
BHZETA
EHEEN
cHEE R ER A A
—ETLHF —BEEE ARNERERE &t
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T
Due to an associate FENEENT - 15,605 15,605
Trade and bills payables EAERAREMNZE — 950,918 950,918
Financial liabilities included in BEMEMEMSER
other payables and REGTEERAZ
accrued liabilities ot N= — 104,262 104,262
Interest-bearing bank borrowings Kf 2 $R{1T &K — 1,104,576 1,104,576
Derivative financial liabilities TTEsmas 196 — 196
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 36. ZEFESIWERMTIA &)
(continued)
Company AT

Financial assets SREE

2008 2007

—EENF —EELF

Loans and Loans and

receivables receivables

ERRERFIRE BERREWKE

HK$’000 HK$'000

BEFT BT

Due from subsidiaries FE U it 8 2 B BR R 1,645,893 2,443,553

Dividend receivables WS 335,000 200,000

Cash and cash equivalents BeREBELEEY 63 154
Financial liabilities cReE

2008 2007

—EENF —EELHF

Financial Financial

liabilities at liabilities at

amortised cost amortised cost
RE R A R ERR A
AEHNEREE ARNEHRERE

HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Interest-bearing bank borrowings Mt SERITER 340,000 —
Due to subsidiaries FEAS M A B BR X 95,823 1,240,632
Financial liabilities included BEAEMEMSERR
in other payables and EitaERz
accrued liabilities TRAE 651 222
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 37. BiEBREEEERKE

158

POLICIES
The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than
derivatives, comprise bank loans and overdrafts, and cash
and short term deposits. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations.
The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities
such as trade receivables and trade payables, which arise

directly from its operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions, including
principally forward currency contracts. The purpose is to
manage currency risks arising from the Group’s operations

and its sources of finance.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below. The Group’s accounting policies in relation to

derivatives are set out in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

Interest rate risk
The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s long term debt

obligations with floating interest rates.

The Group’s policy is to manage its interest cost using an
appropriate mix of fixed and variable rate debts. To manage
this mix in a cost-effective manner, the Group may enter into
interest rate swap contracts to reduce its exposure to interest

rate fluctuations.

AEEYEESMIAGTETARM B
FRAEERES REREMAER - &
ZEMIACTEANRAREESRE
BE ARBEHETRANESREAER
a8 BEEEERRESERE R
B .

AEERZETETIARS  FEGER
HIEEYN  EEEELAEEEERME
FEEZE®WEAR -

FEBERIAFEEZTERABRARIE
Ebg -~ SMERERE  FERRBRABERE -
ESEEHYRAECELRERAB ZBE
ZERRBRNT - AEBERTETA
ZETEREBERBRRMEE24 -

GRS
AEEEHETSANEEHABEIRELE
B RMBEBETER -

FEENBERANAGENESRFEME
EHAEEATNENAR - BUARANE
EEZAS FAEESZHANEREHEN
LR AR L 8 R RO B 2 LR e
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 37. BiIXEKMEEBEERNKE (&)
POLICIES (continued)
Interest rate risk (continued) MERE (HF)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a TRAEFNZRESENHBEIN  RIRT &
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other THMHMBENBRET  AERLEEE
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax RAEMN ST (EHIEEREENS
(through the impact on floating rate borrowings) and the ), BEHAREBRAATBRIEANER & #E
Group'’s and the Company’s equity. FEdse
Group Company
REE AN
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
Increase/ in profit in profit
(decrease) before tax before tax
in interest rate and equity and equity
RN BREARARE BREAENRE
CR2)  #H=#Em/ ORd) =igm/ )
HK$°000 HK$°000
BEF T BETF T
2008 —EENF
Hong Kong dollar B s 1% (10,819) (1,133)
Hong Kong dollar B (1%) 10,819 1,133
2007 —EELF
Hong Kong dollar peegid 1% (10,057) —
Hong Kong dollar B (1%) 10,057 —
Foreign currency risk HhEE 3 B

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
arise from sales or purchases by operating units in currencies
other than the units’ functional currency. Approximately 29%
(2007: 27%) of the Group’s sales are denominated in currencies
other than the functional currency of the operating units
making the sale, whilst almost 59% (2007: 31%) of costs are
denominated in currencies other than the units’ functional

currency.

AEBFEXSERAR  ZEABRERK
EENNZBEUEER U EBET
HERRE - FEN29%(ZZFLF !
27%) 2 HET UK EE M e E ¥ U
ZEWEE BEN9%(ZEZTLF
31%) ZMATINEEEM P REERE LN 2
E¥EEHE -
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
balance sheet date to a reasonably possible change in the
RMB exchange rate, with all other variables held constant,
of the Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in the fair

value of monetary assets and liabilities) and equity.

37.

BERREEEEREE #)

SRR ()
TRAARBEZRSZHNHRAUIF - K
MYREEHCEEEMBENERT ¢
ARMERRAESERTRENEDR &
FEBGRBAENRER (HREEMEEE
MEENAAELHERN)NEE -

Increase/
(decrease)
in profit
Changes in before tax
exchange rate and equity
BB AR Fl &
mzEEmMm
ExEe (R 4)
HK$'000
BT T
2008 —EBNE
If Hong Kong dollar fisf B HE 5
weakens against RMB ARBEE 1% 5,598
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens B
against RMB ARBHE 1% (5,598)
2007 —BELF
If Hong Kong dollar weakens B
against RMB ARBEE 1% (409)
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens B H
against RMB AREFE 1% 409
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that only well-
established customers will be considered for open account
terms and the approval of credit terms is subject to stringent
credit check procedures. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to

bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents and derivative financial
instruments, arises from default of the counterparties, with
a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these
instruments, which is considered by the directors as not
significant as the counterparties of these other financial

assets are all well-recognised financial institutions.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for

collateral.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from trade and bills receivables are

disclosed in note 21 to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank
overdrafts, and bank loans. As at 31 March 2008, 66% (2007:
50%) and 34% (2007: 50%) of the Group’s total borrowings
will mature over one year, and in less than one year,

respectively.

37.

31 March 2008 —EZENF=F=+—H

HREREEEEREEK &)

FERRE
FEEEEARRACERF2E=ERS -
FEBZBREAREEEARFEBREF
MIREFRF  RETBEZEEER
Bt NREBSENESEERNE
EER o MASEYEER ZZRER -

FEBHEMEHEE (BRERERASEE
WTESRIA) 2FERBEERSH
FENMEL  HeABHEZERZEIA
ZEREE HRUAMEREERZHTF
AEZARACEERFZERMEE EUE
ERAZERBATERKR -

HRAEEEEREREERFZE=
X5 MAUBBREFERR -

HihEEASEEEAERERRERE
BEENGEERBRZELCHEERNA LT
WwacMIEE21 0

i E 1 R R

AEEBERFARTELIRBITERU
FESHNEBERBE T 2EARE TS -
RZBENFZA=Z+—H AEH66%
(ZZZEF 1 50%) R34%(ZFF L F !
50%) ) EMBEES » FHER—FER
—FREH -
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Liquidity risk (continued)

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#& 3R T HisE

31 March 2008 —EZENNF=/H=+—H

37. BXEREEEEREE &)

B ()
FEBRGEERANESREE  BRERKRA

as at the balance sheet date, based on the contracted HWBE S RABENT
undiscounted payments, was as follows:
Group £
3 to
Less than less than 1to5 Over
On demand 3 months 12 months years 5 years Total
=3
RER ZEAUR t=@A —ZHF BERE Aar
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BEFTT BEFTT BETFT BEF T BT T BT T
2008 2 20%:3
Due to an associate EfEE LT — 20,141 — — — 20,141
Interest-bearing bank fft S8R 1T
borrowings &N — — 434,781 812,769 — 1,247,550
Trade and bills payables ENEREIRESEZE — 991,992 1,869 — — 993,861
Other payables HEFIRR 651 129,884 — = — 130,535
Derivative financial TELR
liabilities 8& - 7,008 12,430 — — 19,438
651 1,149,025 449,080 812,769 — 2,411,525
2007 —EELHF
Due to an associate FESEE DR — 15,605 — — — 15,605
Interest-bearing bank ff B4R 1T
borrowings R A_ 278,674 268,111 515,685 42,106 1,104,576
Trade and bills payables — FE{ERAREM EiE — 921,419 29,499 — — 950,918
Other payables Hfh e AT BR R 222 104,040 — — — 104,262
Derivative financial TR
liabilities 8E& — 98 98 — — 196
222 1,319,836 297,708 515,685 42,106 2,175,557
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND  37.

POLICIES (continued)

HREREEEEREEK &)

Liquidity risk (continued) REMEREE (&)
Company AT
3 to less
On Less than 3 than 12 1to5
demand months months years Total
=3
RER =ZEAUR +T=@A —ERE &5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BETT BETT EBETT BETT BT
2008 —EENF
Financial liabilities BFERHE fth e BR X
included in other REGFEERERZ
payables and accruals 4£@&aE 651 — — — 651
Due to subsidiaries KB DR 95,823 — — — 95,823
Interest-bearing bank M 2$R{T
borrowings =& — — 56,667 283,333 340,000
96,474 — 56,667 283,333 436,474
2007 —EELF
Financial liabilities BFE R H fth FE 1S BR X
included in other REFEERZ
payables and accruals 4£®&aE 222 — — — 222
Due to subsidiaries FEATHt A =) 1,240,632 — — — 1,240,632
1,240,854 — — — 1,240,854
Capital management EXER

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will

be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the

return to the equity holders through the optimisation of the

gearing ratio.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes

adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions.

To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may

adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital

to shareholders or issue new shares. No change was made in

the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended

31 March 2008 and 31 March 2007.

FEEEFAEERARBAEERERE
WEERD IREBBRNESEEL

. ERRGEHRADSE -

FEBEEERAEBURRBELERBERL
EREHRAE - AEEAUUEBRAEHR
RIRBHRE - ARRBEERNLBITH
RURBRARELER - RBE-2Z
NE=ZA=+-BR-Z2ZLtHF=/A=+
—ALFER EXAEENER BERK
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND  37.

38.

POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is

total interest-bearing bank borrowings, net of cash and cash

equivalents, divided by the equity attributable to equity

holders of the Company. The Group’s policy is to maintain

the gearing ratio at an appropriate level.

The gearing ratios as at the balance sheet dates were as

BERREEBEREE #)

EXEE (H)

FEBMEREARGBRIREREL  BX
SELEZNBRRERASSENNEN
ERTERGURLAREMEEELE
B E - AEENRRECHITELREE

EERREEAF o

FEEREESREEAEFAEERNT :

follows:
Group £8
2008 2007
—EENE —EELHF
HK$°000 HK$’000
EBETFT BT T
Total interest-bearing bank borrowings  #H EBRTER 1,247,550 1,104,576
Less: Cash and cash equivalents K HEeRBEEZEY (817,617) (244,829)
429,933 859,747
Equity attributable to equity holders AKABEZFTEE
of the Company iR 3,819,352 3,248,080
Gearing ratio EREBELR 11.3% 26.5%
APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 38. UBBRZLME

The financial statements were approved and authorised for

issue by the board of directors on 18 July 2008.

FHBH/RER-_ZBZENFLATN\BHA

ETERERRET R -
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